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P-ROCEEDI-NGS
6:31 p.m
CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Good eveni ng, | adi es and
gentlenen. This is a public hearing of the Zoni ng Conm ssi on
for the District of Colunbia. Today's dateis April 5, 2018.
My nane is Anthony Hood. Joining ne are Vice Chair Ml ler,
Comm ssi oner Shapiro, Conm ssioner My and Conm ssioner
Tur nbul | .
We are also joined by the Ofice of Zoning Staff,
Ms. Sharon Schellin, Ofice of Planning Staff, M. Jesick,
District Departnment of Transportation, M. Zi mernman, and
also the Ofice of Attorney General, M. Lovick. Thi s
proceedi ng i s being recorded by a court reporter. |It's also
webcast |ive.
Accordi ngly, we nust ask you to refrain from any
di sruptive noise or actions in the hearing room including
the display of any signs or objects. Notice of today's
heari ng was published in the D.C. Register, and copies of
t hat announcenent are available to ny left, on the wall near
the door. The hearing will be conducted in accordance with
the provisions of 11(z) DCWMR, Chapter 4, as follows:
prelimnary nmatters, Applicant's case, report of the Ofice
of Pl anning, report of other governnent agencies, report of
t he ANC, organi zati ons and persons i n support, organizations

and persons in opposition, rebuttal, and closing by the
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Applicant. The followng tinme constraints will be nai ntai ned
In this neeting.

Applicant has up to 60 mnutes -- we believe we
can do 30; we really want to nake sure we get to questions
and concerns -- organizations, five mnutes, individuals,
three mnutes. The Conm ssion intends to adhere to the tine
limts as strictly as possible, in order to hear the case in
a reasonabl e period of tine.

All  persons wshing to testify before the
Commi ssion in this evening's hearing are asked to register
at the kiosk to nmy left and fill out two w tness cards.
These cards are located to ny left on the table near the
door. Upon coming forward to speak to the Conmi ssion, please
give both cards to the reporter sitting to ny right before
taking a seat at the table. Wen presenting the informtion
to the Conm ssion, please turn on and speak into the
m crophone, first saying your nane and honme address. Wen
you are finished speaking, please turn your m crophone off,
so the m crophone i s no | onger picking up sound or background
noi se. The staff w Il be avail able throughout the hearing

to di scuss procedural questions.

Pl ease turn off electronic devices at this tinge,
so as not to disrupt these proceedings. Wuld all
i ndi vidual s wishing to testify please rise to take the oath.
Ms. Schellin, would you please adm ni ster the oath?
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6
MS. SCHELLIN: Yes. Please raise your right hand.

Do you solemly swear or affirmthe testinony you wll give
this evening will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth?

(Wtnesses sworn.)

M5. SCHELLIN: Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Now, at this time, the Comm ssion
w Il consider any prelimnary matters. Does the staff have
any prelimnary matters?

MS. SCHELLI N: Yes, sir, just to remnd the
Commi ssion that the Conm ssion previously granted party
status in opposition to the Waterfront Tower, represented by
Hara Bouganim so they've already been granted party status
by the Conm ssion. The Applicant has sonme proffered expert
W tnesses, if Ms. Shiker wants to go over those.

MS. SH KER: Yes, thank vyou. Good evening,
menbers of the Conmm ssion. W have a variety of expert
Wi t nesses, nost of which have been accepted by this Board
before, but sone are new. We have Brett Sw atocha from
Perkins Eastman. He is an expert in architecture.

He has not been accepted by this Board before, but
we did submt his resune for the record. Dan VanPelt has
been accepted by this Board many tines. W have Anita
Morrison, an expert in real estate econom cs, Mchael Smth,

an expert in retail marketing and | easi ng, Shane Dettman, an
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expert in land use and zoni ng.

He has been accepted by the Conm ssion before.
Trini Rodriguez, expert in |andscape architecture, she has
been accepted, as well. Then, in the event of any questi ons,
Ryan Brannan, an expert in civil engineering, also having
been accepted by this Conm ssion before. The three new ones

woul d be M. Swi atocha, Ms. Mrrison, and M. Smth.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Thank you, WMs. Shiker.

COW SSI ONER MAY: Do we have all those resunmes?
| nmust have m ssed one or two.

M5. SHIKER: They should all be --

COMM SSI ONER  MAY: They were all in the sane
package?

M5. SHIKER  They were all in the sane package,
yes.

PARTI Cl PANT: 13- B.

COW SSI ONER MAY: Maybe | got tired when | got
through M. Dettman's resune and coul dn't keep reading. |

don't know. 1'll | ook; thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOCOD: Ms. Shi ker, | need you to hel p ne.
Let's do one at a tine. Let's do the first one.

MS. SHI KER: M. Swiatocha is an expert in
architecture. He's with Perkins Eastman and is the primry

architect on the project.

PARTI Cl PANT: | have no concerns about him
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CHAI RMVAN HOOD:  Any obj ections?
PARTI CI PANT:  No.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: No objections. Let's go to the

next one.

M5. SH KER: M. VanPelt, which has been accepted
bef or e.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: The ones that we --

M5. SHI KER We don't need the ones -- okay, thank
you.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: The ones we've already done,
unl ess sonebody wants to reconsi der what we've done --

M5. SH KER: Ckay. Thank you. Ms. Morrison, she

is an expert in real estate econonics. Her resunme is in
there. She issued an expert report, and we will have her
avai l abl e for questions today. She's with Partners for

Econom ¢ Sol uti ons.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: W' re proffering her as what, real
estate?

MS. SH KER. Yes, real estate econom cs.

PARTI Cl PANT: No obj ecti on.

M5. SH KER: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN  HOCQD: Any objections? kay, no
obj ecti ons.

M5. SHI KER:. Ckay. Thank you. The final one is

M. Mchael Smth, from Street Sense. He is an expert in
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9

retail marketing and | easing. Again, we have aretail report
fromhim and we wll be offering himup for questions in
case there are questions about that report.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  You're proffering himup, again,

as a what ?

M5. SHI KER: Expert in retail nmarketing and

| easi ng.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay, |'msorry. Any objections?

PARTI Cl PANT: Do we have his bio -- | nmean his CV?

MS. SH KER: You shoul d.

exhibit to the pre-hearing subm ssion,

It should be in the

13 --

PARTI Cl PANT: W have a short bio.

MS. SHHKER: |If not, | have hi mhere, and he coul d

answer sone questi ons.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Just this half page bio?

M5. SHIKER: That's correct.

PARTICIPANT: I'mfine, M. Chair.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: | wish there had been a
little bit nore in it, rather than just the little, slight
overvi ew.

M5. SHHKER: He is here, if you'd like to ask him
any questions, or we'd be happy, if the Comr ssion wanted to

take it under advisenent, to submt an additional CV for the

record.
CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Why don't
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10

submt sonme additional -- |I'msure his resunme is nore than
a half page. Because mne's nore than a half page, so | know
his is nore than a half page. Any objections, though, with
the subm ssion? GCkay, we will give himthat, but we'll | ook
for that to conplete our record.

M5. SHI KER: Absol utely. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN  HOCQD: Anything else up here? MVs.
Schellin, do we have anything else? | think that's it.

M5. SCHELLI N: That's all we have for the
Appl i cant .

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Ckay. Ms. Shiker, you all may
begi n.

MS. SHI KER: Thank you. Agai n, good evening.
W' re pleased to be here tonight to present an application
for a nodification to a first-stage PUD application and a
second-stage PUD for the properties |ocated at 375 and 425
MStreet. This project has had a | ong history, starting back
in 2003, when the Zoning Conm ssion first considered the
Waterfront Station. Many of you wll renmenber what |'ve
shown on the screen here, which was the Waterfront Ml l.

It was in the superbl ock down i n Sout hwest. There
was a vision to create it as nmore of an urban center, a
comrercial town center. That original PUD was approved in
2003. Then in 2007, there was a significant nodification to

it to really enhance and create the devel opnent that we see
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t oday.

As you can see, this is the PUD project site. The
two sout hernnost properties, right there, are the ones that
we're tal king about. If you'll go to the next page, you can
see this is the original approval that was given

The four bui | di ngs, or the center, wer e
constructed as part of the first second-stage PUD. The
northwest buildingis the Elliott on 4th, and it was approved
just a couple of years ago. The northeast parcel wll be
com ng before the Comm ssion in the comng nonths. W are
here to round out the bottomto create those final edges of
this urban center at 4th and M Street. As we have not ed,
we're nodifying this PUDin, really, one primary area, which
is to replace the office use on the upper floors of the
buil ding with residential use.

Both buildings will contain street-activating
retail. There will be well-planned public spaces that
connect to the existing public spaces. The Metro plaza wll
really finally see the vision that had been hoped for it.

It will include over 30,000 square feet of
comrerci al use of office, community serving office use, and
it will have 6,000 square foot of a community center, which
we're going to talk nore about a very exciting addition to
t he property.

While there are certainly differing views in the
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12

comunity as to what the use should be at this project and
whet her the sites should be devel oped, we submit that the
proposed anount and type of retail, residential, office, and
comunity center use fully support the town center vision for
which Waterfront Station was identified in the planning
docunents, and which were the primary goal of this PUD. |
will first point to the Southwest neighborhood plan. It
calls for the Waterfront Station to be a thriving town
center, with it being the commercial heart of the city.

That plan directly acknow edges that the office
uses would be very difficult to | ease here. That plan was
done in 2015, after the original PUD, and it provides
gui dance that the devel oper should have flexibility to go to
residential use because there is a strong nmarket for
residential and not a strong market for office.

It saidthere's a small narket for growi ng retail
Qur team took it upon thenselves to do additional analysis
to determine if this is the correct way to go about it. The
first thing the Applicant did was comm ssion a nmarket study,
which is in your record at Exhibit 13-F.

This market study was to determ ne the types and
anounts of uses that would successfully create this town
center. The study found two things: 1) that residential
use, and not office use, is viable for the property; and that

2) residential use would actually better support the town
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center goal by activating the street wth greater pedestri ans
and with supporting the retail. Wth that initial study, we
then | ooked to see what type of pedestrian usage do we have
on the site.

Can we go to the next one, which actually shows
the ground floor? Thanks. W decided to conduct a
pedestrian study. Let's see what are the pedestrians that
we have. That is found in the record as well in our
suppl enental pre-hearing subm ssion.

The study | ooked to determ ne the tines of days
and the days of the week to decide when is the highest and
| onest pedestrian usage. Wat it found was that pedestrians

were on the street nost in the norning, lunch, and at 5:30

in the evening on weekdays.

The | owest pedestrian usage was found in the
eveni ngs, on weekdays, and on the weekends. This is very
simlar to what you find in office districts, not in
residential and retail-centered nei ghborhoods. This al so
gave us the indication that we need to bring a critical mass
tothe Waterfront Stationtoreally fulfill the vision of the
town center. Finally, the Applicant engaged Street Sense,
which is a well-known retail consultant, to evaluate the

necessary elenents and the use mx to determ ne what would
be necessary to create a town center.

That report concluded that the proposed m x of
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retail, residential, and office uses woul d support the needed
pedestrian traffic to create the maximumretail potential.
The report also recommended a variety of strategies to
enhance the retail climte, which have been i ncorporated into
t he proposal.

O her steps that we have decided to do to
encour age the successful retail climate include establishing
a working group with the ANC, which we're going to talk
about, and having interimretail strategies. Here, with all
of the culmnation of all of this analysis and studies,
residential use was clearly the winner in going forward with
t he second-stage PUD applicati ons.

The inmportance of this devel opnment al so required
a significant anmount of outreach with the O fice of Planning,
with DDOT, and with the conmunity. W are pleased to have
OP support, and we noted in the report, there were a variety
of issues and questions that were asked. W nmde a
subm ssion this norning that addresses nmany of those, and to
the extent those aren't fully addressed, we're going to talk
about some of themin our presentation this evening.

W are also pleased to have DDOT's report in
support, and we believe that we have cone to concl usion on
all of those issues. DDOT will be able to |l et you know, and
we put those in witing to the record today.

W are also pleased to have the ANC s support,
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after significant work and engagenent on this project that
IS so inportant to this comunity. M. Smth is going to
tal k about the response to that.

| think at this point, I will turnit over for him
to talk to that conmunity engagenent, address our responses
to those conditions. | will then goto M. Sw atocha to wal k
t hrough the devel opnent. |'mgoing to submt M. Dettman's
testinony for the record, and M. VanPelt can talk very
briefly about sone of the transportation i ssues. Thank you.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD:  Turn your mc on.

MR D. SMTH  Sorry about that. Vice president
of devel opnment with Forest City, Washi ngton, nmanagi ng nmenber
of the partnership devel oping the Waterfront Station and t he
remai ning two parcels, representing our partners, Bresler &
Rei ner, Forest City, and Vornado, now JBG Snith.

Over the past several nonths, we've been working
diligently to engage the sout hwest conmunity totry to create
what this thriving town center should consist of. The
over archi ng thene was a pl ace for peopl e in Sout hwest to cone
t oget her, not sinply through the nei ghborhood retail to be
provi ded, but through a place that the conmunity coul d gat her
and actively participate in the nei ghborhood.

W heard the ANC, and out of this cane the
comrunity center. W nmet with the ANC weekly, over a

two-nonth period. \What cane out of those neetings is the
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t eam sponsorship of a 6,000-square-foot comunity center,
wth free rent for a period of 30 years, that would be
prom nently placed on the south side of the 375 East
Building, which is the first building to be built, wth
direct ground-floor access from M Street. In order to
provi de a space that is ready on day one, we have offered a
bui | d-out all owance of $500, 000, plus another $50,000 for
fixtures and furniture. Also offered to the operator wl|
be the | andl ord's paynent of all conmobn area nai nt enance, or
CAM charges, and real estate taxes, estimated in the
aggregate to be about $90, 000 annually for 30 years prior to
inflation.

The only charges that woul d be borne by the tenant
woul d be tenant's use of electricity, which consunption is
unknown by the landlord. To get the tenant up and running
during its first year, we have also offered an initial
start-up grant of $15,000 to cover those initial costs during
the first year, allowing the tenant tine to build up for that
cost in future years, as they are successfully up and
runni ng.

Over the past several nonths, nmy teamhas nmet with
and di scussed the proposed project with nenbers of the ANC,
Ti ber | sl and Condoni ni um Carrol |l sburg Condom ni um
Wat er front Tower Condom ni um the head of SWNA, t he Sout hwest

Bl D & Har bour Squar e Condom ni umto understand their concerns
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with the proposed devel opnent and to try to address their
| ssues. Wth respect to Waterfront Condo Board, especially,
we nmet four separate occasions with various nenbers of the
board, beginning in October, to understand their issues. The
direct result was a nodification to our | oading strategy, so
that the |oading maneuvers are interior to the buildings,
wi th no backup maneuvering on the private drive.

The | oadi ng was noved approximately 50 feet to the
south, as to not conflict with the congested choke point at
the north, whether the north drive neets the east/west pl aza,
which is directly in front of Waterfront Condo. The design
of the north/south private drive changed, as well, with the
continuation of the pattern concrete along the drive, with
a new si dewal k, with a planning strip against the face of our
bui | di ng.

W propose to duplicate this again on the west
side of the west building, as well. We believe these
i nprovenents will greatly enhance the pedestri an experience,
whi |l e addressing many of the concerns of Waterfront Tower
residents. A subsequent neeting was hel d between our traffic
consul tant, Gorove/ Sl ade, and Ms. Bougani mto address det ai
concerns regarding the traffic study. When we were nmade
aware of any issues, we nmet to understand what they were and
address themas best we could. In addition to addressing the

i ssues rai sed by Waterfront Tower, we have al so revi ewed t he
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comments set forthinthe ANC s report, including its request
for the installation of a public space el enent adjacent to
the Metro Plaza that signifies a sense of arrival to the
Waterfront Station town center.

The Metro Pl aza was constructed i n accordance with
t he approved second-stage PUD plans, but since then the
community has requested additional elenents to increase the
vi brancy at the entrance of the Metro station.

As set forth in the community benefits agreenent
that we nade with the ANC, we have negotiated -- we're fully
comritted to working with the ANC on the design, |ocation,
and installation of an elenment in the public space in this
| ocation, subject to coordination with the other Waterfront
Station property owners and approval by DDOT. Also, at the
request of the ANC, we are fully commtted to establishing
an operations managenent plan for the overall PUD site, to
be coordinated with the adj acent property owners and t he ANC,
to provide active on-site managenent. This commtnent wll
begin by convening two neetings within the first vyear,
following the start of construction on the east M Street
buil ding, and will continue to convene annually thereafter.

W al so agree to the ANC s request to establish
a construction managenent plan to prohibit residents of the
MStreet buil dings fromobtainingresidential parking permts

and to inplement a retail strategy and inpl enentation plan,
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as set forth in the community benefits agreenent.

MR, SW ATOCHA: Good evening. Bret Swatochawth
Per ki ns Eastman DC. As the design architects for Elliott on
Fourth, the nobst recently conpleted building in the
Waterfront Station Town Center developnent, we've been
working with Forest Gty in this southwest community for the
| ast seven years, sowe'reintimately famliar with the sites
prior to starting work on these two individual buildings.
A primary prem se paraneter of the design when we approached
t hese buildings was that the setbacks, height, and density
of the buildings were to renain as was originally approved,
and we were to focus on the refinenents of the design and t he
massing that would reflect the residential program the
change in use of the buil dings.

The opportunity to re-investigate the design and
t he approach to the design for residential started first with
a | ook back at some of the testinony that had been given in
0238A and sone of the feedback that was originally provided
on the massing of the office buildings.

W saw the approach to these buildings as an
opportunity to address sonme of the earlier grievances wth
the massing, which had a continuous street wall the full
hei ght of the building along M Street and was negatively
vi ewed by the nei ghbors across the street.

When adapting the buildings to be a residential
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footprint, we oriented the courtyard of the building toward
M Street and worked extensively with the Ofice of Planning
to figure out how we could maintain that orientation toward
M Street and establish a continuous street wall al ong Mt hat
I S necessary for the vibrant retail environnent that we are
trying to establish. Wth the refinenent of the massing, in
working with the conmmunity, and in particular with the party
In opposition, Waterfront Tower Condo, there were sone
gquestions rai sed about the i npact of the shadows fromthe new
massi ng.

W did work, over the past couple weeks, to
performa shadow study. | wll quickly go through that, just
to pick up the highlights. Looking at three primary tinmes
of the year, and then over the course of the day, you wl]l
see, in these highlighted shadows, that -- we did a
conparison of the existing conditions, which is an enpty
site, the office massing which was previously approved, and
our proposed residential massing.

You'll see that in June, at the Summer Sol stice,
t he i npact of the proposed residential building, as conpared
tothe office building, is alnost identical. W'Ill have sone
closer views, just to highlight that conparison. In the
Mar ch/ Sept enber condition, again, early in the day, the
pri mary shadows are comng fromthe recently conpleted 301

MStreet building directly south of Waterfront Tower Condos,
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and there are shadows fromthe proposed residential building
cast onto that property in the late afternoon, into the
evenings only. Again, asimlar condition in Decenber, when
the sun is at its |lowest angle for nost of the year.

A qui ck conparison of the existing condition, on
the left, which is the enpty site, you can see the shadows
cast by the old EPA headquarters office building. In the
m ddl e, the approved of fi ce massi ng, you see t he shadows j ust
barely grazing the |ower corner, the southwest corner of
Waterfront Towers, and the sane condition fromthe proposed
resi denti al massi ng.

I n March/ Sept enber, again, there's actually, we
bel i eve, an i nprovenent on the shadow condition, the inpacts
of the shadows on the building, due to the setbacks of the
pent house on t he proposed residential nassing, as opposed to
t he massi ng that was shown for the office building condition.

Again, March/ Septenber, the inpacts of the
residenti al massi ng, as conpared to the approved nassi ng, are
negl i gi bl e. Decenber 21st, simlar condition. These two
buildings really do serve as the conpletion of the |ower
portion of the Waterfront Station Town Center, and they are
critical to establishing the vibrancy and the density and t he
edges to the site that are required to bring the retailers
tothe site and create the environnment that everybody desires

at Waterfront Stati on.
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W view these two buildings as a pair acting
together. Wiile they were designed concurrently, different
teans were working on the projects, intentionally give the
bui | di ngs di fferent character, but intentionally wantingthem
to act together as part of this gateway condition you'll see
in this next slide.

W worked, again, with the Ofice of Planning
early in the project to refine the massing at the corners of
4th and M so that the two buildings really do work together,
primarily at that corner, as you nake your approach into the
Town Center devel opnent.

The east building, 375 M has a primary, prom nent
position on the Metro Plaza, and it's really going to serve
to activate that Metro Plaza. W see the ground floor of
that building, as it fronts onto the Plaza, as vibrant,
active, open retail space that is going to create the edge
there and create the environnment in that plaza that everybody
is looking for. It's inportant to note that we have --
t hough not required by the approved PUD, we have held the
bui | di ng back fromthe edge of the plaza to all ow nore open
space at the ground fl oor.

The nost recent developnent in the project, as
Christine and David both mentioned earlier, is the inclusion
of the Southwest Community Center, with probably the nost

prom nent position on the facade. It has a uni que identity,
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as conpared to the building.

It is a distinct identity, framed by the towers
of the residential building on either side. It is prom nent
and fronts onto M The idea here is that it really gives --
It opens up out to the community.

We' ve created this bal cony as a front porch idea,
so that nenbers of the community wal ki ng by are engaging with
menbers using that community space on the upper levels. A
view of the building fromthe north. W've worked diligently
on the massing to tie the buildings into what exists as part
of the pattern |anguage on 4th Street as the existing
buil dings on the Town Center. You'l |l see that quickly,
again, in sone of the renderings. Here's a view of that
really active, open plaza with the retail fronting on it.
It's a primary location for retail and restaurants on the
site.

Anot her significant devel opnment fromthe previous
subm ssions was the dramatic reconfiguration of the | oading
dock on 375 M The loading entries had previously been
| ocated at the very northern edge, northeast corner of the
buil ding, directly across from Waterfront Tower.

Wrking with Waterfront Tower and hearing their
concerns, we consi derably reconfigured the | oadi ng condition.
W took all of the | oading maneuvers, truck nmaneuvers of f of

that north/south drive and nobved them internal to the
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buil ding, to alleviate the congestion at the northern corner
of the site.

We've also recessed the |oading and garage
entrances to further conceal themfromview, soit's not the
first thing that nenbers of the comunity are seeing as
they' re wal ki ng out onto this drive. W have also pulledthe
edge of the building back to create a continuous pedestrian
pat hway on both sides of the street, noving north, with a
| andscape edge against the building. This is a fourth side
of the building. It is certainly not a service approach to
t he buil di ng.

W have taken that ideato heart. David nentioned
earlier the idea that these north/south drives, they're being
treated as part of the overall devel opnent. What we' ve done,
froma | andscapi ng perspective, is integrated the paving that
is existing on the site on the north side of the building and
wr apped that around, so these two access points on either
side of the developnent really do connect to the public
spaces on the north side of both the east and west buil di ngs.

Here's a view of the west building. You can see
here the idea that the massing is refined, in order to
address the height of the buildings at the center of the
devel opnment and really tie into an idea that was started at
Elliott on Fourth, at the northern end, where the center of

the block is really captured by a nore solid massing, and
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then the glass corners on both buildings create this
significant gateway condition. A view here of that nore
solid expression of the massing and a closer view of the
entrance to the building, to 375. |'ll quickly go through
t hese.

There are two |evels of parking, two |evels of
bel ow grade parking garage with public parking for retail,
office, and the community center uses. The ground floor is
pl anned around retail wapping from M Street, up onto 4th
Street, to connect to the existing retail on 4th.

You can see, in the east building, the inclusion
of a roughly 2, 000-square-foot community center at the ground
floor, which then ties into an upper-Ilevel community center,
simlar plan layout, w thout the community center, on the
west bui | di ng.

At the second level, we're asking for flexibility
on the second fl oor of 425 MStreet for the potential future
i nclusion of a nezzanine in the doubl e-hei ght space of the
retail that occupies the corner of the building. It's, |
think, a valuable opportunity for retail that m ght occupy
t hat space. You see here the community center, that roughly
4,000 square feet of space at the second floor, with a great
view and access to the courtyard. Here is that |ocation of
that, where we're asking for the flexibility for the

inclusion of a future nezzanine. The third-floor plan --
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"Il go through these quickly.

Fourt h-fl oor plan, you can see that we have a | ot
of outdoor terrace levels and a significant nunber of
bal conies, so there are, for the residents of the building,
t remendous opportunities to occupy the roof terraces of these
spaces.

At the rooftop, you can see that we have pushed
a significant anount of the residential anenity space of the
building up to the roof, in order to nmaximze the
opportunities for retail at the ground floor and office and
community space at the second floor of the east building.

As a result, there is very little horizontal
surface left. Wat we have been doi ng over the past couple
weeks, in response to the Ofice of Planning's -- actually,
within the last couple days -- the Ofice of Planning's
reports is exploring alternative opportunities to enhance the
sust ai nabl e prospects of this building and incorporate a
solar PV array into the building. The idea here, you can see
inthe sketch at the top of this page, is that we can i ncl ude
a PV array on the south-facing orientation of the building
Wi thin the one-to-one setback, with a goal of reducing the
el ectrical demands of the buil ding. | think you all have
probably | ooked through the elevations. | don't need to
dwell on them If you have questions, we can certainly

address those, and we'll nove to Dan. Thank you.
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MR.  VANPELT: Good evening, Comm ssioners, Dan

VanPelt with Gorove Sl ade. I'"ve been working with Forest
City and the design team and coordinating with DDOT and the
conmuni ty. I"'m just going to quickly run through the
transportation highlights and our coordination with DDOT.
| think we'll skip the site context here.

| think we're all pretty famliar. Brett just did
a great job of wal king you through the ground-fl oor plan, so
| think I'lIl just step to the conprehensive transportation
review W did a CIR for this project, and it was scoped
wi t h DDOT and included 14 intersections and driveways in the
vicinity of the site. | think it's very inportant to note
that the change in land use fromoffice to residential has
a positive inmpact on trip generation. The proposed program
will generate half as many peak hour vehicular trips as the
of fi ce program woul d have gener at ed.

Again, the parking and internalized | oading
access, also the private drives and the curb cut to parking
on M Street, have been elimnated in this nodified plan.
Current DDOT policies would not allow the parking access on
an arterial street, as it had previously been contenpl at ed.

The CTR concluded that there were two
i ntersections that showed sone increase in vehicul ar del ay.
These could be mtigated with signal timng adjustnents and

the transportati on managenent pl an.
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Ther e have al so been | ong-standi ng concerns about
pedestrian safety operations at 4th Street, at the Mitro
Pl aza. There's been inprovenents that have been proposed,
and I'll touch on those in just a nonent. The next slide
sunmari zes the pedestrian data that we coll ected and Chri sty
t al ked about earlier, so |l won't dwell on that too much, but
it really shows that the pedestrian traffic that we saw on
4th Street, when we | ooked at a typical Friday and a typical
Saturday, was pretty nuch what we woul d expect when you have
daytinme office uses, where there's the comuter inbound in
the norning; there's lunchtinme activity; and then there's the
eveni ng, as people are conmuting and | eaving, but then you
see | ower volunmes on the weekend.

W Dbelieve that the residential uses would
i ncrease the pedestrian activity on the evenings and
weekends. Knowi ng the community and ANC concerns, having
observed the operations of 4th Street, near the Metro Pl aza,
on many occasions, the design teaminteracted with DDOT on
potential enhancenents for this |ocation.

The goal of the changes were to inprove the
i ntuitiveness, the safety, and the operations of the area for
all the users. The plan that's shown here on the slide cane
out of a work session with DDOT. The changes here are neant
to create a nore typical condition that notorists and

pedestrians woul d see as nore intuitive and recogni ze where
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they would interact and intersect with each other. The
Applicant will continue to work with DDOT and the conmunity
and adj acent property owners on the final design for this
| ocati on. Anot her thing that also becane apparent in

conversations with the community is that the private drives
need better traffic nanagenent, pedestrian specific
accommodations, and traffic cal m ng enhancenents.

There were specifically concerns from Waterfront
Tower Condom ni um about the choke point that occurs in front
of their property and The Leo today and that additional
traffic fromthis PUD, and the 301 MStreet project currently
under construction will exacerbate operational issues.

W bel i eve that the pl an shown here, conbi ned with
the internalized | oading, the new notor court that's being
constructed wth Bernstein's 301 M Street, and a
col l aborative approach anongst all properties that wl]l
utilize the private drive to better manage themwi ||l nitigate
t hese i ssues. The Applicant has agreed to continue to
coordinate this plan, as David said earlier, wth the
surroundi ng property stakehol ders, and see it inplenented.
At this time, we believe we've addressed all of DDOT' s
concerns and that we have their support. As Christy said
today, there was a response that was put in the record that
addressed all the outstanding issues. It also included an

updated TDM plan and a safety study scope for 4th and M
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Street.

| think that the materials that we have subm tted
I n the record have shown our extensive coordination w th DDOT
and the community, and | think we've worked hard to address
the transportation concerns. Forest City wll continue to
coordinate with DDOT and the community as we go forward.

There were a couple things in the ANC report, a
coupl e concerns about bus stops, the 74 Metro bus stop and
the circulator stop. Nothing that the plan does here w |
preclude those stops, and Forest Cty wll continue to
coordinate with DDOT in the future to | ocate those stops.

M5. SHI KER: Thank you very much. In concl usion,
| just would neke three quick points. W have had a
signi ficant conmunity engagenent process, and | feel |ike we
have conme very, very far fromwhere we first started in this
project. W appreciate the ANCs work with us. They took
time to neet with us every other week for a period of nonths.
W feel that we cane very far with that. W' ve worked
closely with Waterfront Towers.

W' ve tried to address nmany of their concerns, and

| think we've wal ked t hrough sone of those. | knowthat they
still have sone other concerns that they'll address this
evening, but we do feel like we've made progress to | ook

t hrough t hose.

W feel like it's been a collaborative process
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with the different stakehol ders. Finally, I'll point out
t hat the second-stage PUDfully conplies with the first-stage
PUD FAR, density, height, and nost inportantly, setbacks.

Because this Comm ssion took a lot of time in
desi gni ng the hei ght and setbacks for this building, to nake
surethat it appropriately fit wwthin the Waterfront Stati on.
Finally, the nodification that we are requesting is
consistent wth the Sout hwest nei ghborhood plan and wll be
an integral part to achieving the goals for this PUD and for
the planning vision of a town center for this site. Wth
that, we open it up for questions. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Al l right, thank you all for your
presentation. Let nme just ask you, Ms. Shiker, you said that
you all conplied with all the setbacks and everything with
t he pent house.

MS. SHI KER: Yes, we do. There's a 30-foot
setback fromthe property line at the ground | evel, and then
an additi onal 45-foot setback on the upper |evels, above the

second fl oor, which was highly negotiated at the tinme of the

2007 PUD

CHAI RMVAN  HOCD: | was nore concerned about you
sayi ng how the Comm ssion took great detail in nmaking sure
t hat our setbacks and what we went through, so | appreciate

t hat . W don't get that. We wusually get sonething in

reverse. Let me open it up and ask for any comrents or
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questions. Comm ssioner My?

COW SSI ONER MAY: | n your whirlw nd presentation,
maybe | mssed it, but did you talk specifically to the
| ssues that were still open in the OP's report? Because
there were a handful of those, specifically the level and
certification increase in |1Z and nunber of three-bedroom
units. Sol ar panels, | heard what you had to say about that,
but | have several questions about that, and then bal coni es.

MS. SHI KER: I n our subm ssion today, we wal ked
t hrough each of those issues in detail. W had spoken with
the Ofice of Planning earlier, who indicated they were
t aki ng our responses under advisenent. "' m happy to wal k
t hrough our responses if you'd like for ne to.

COMM SSI ONER  MAY: That woul d be hel pful. | t
doesn't really help us very nuch to get a subm ssion on the
day of.

MS. SHI KER: Absol ut el y. Wth respect to the
i ncl usionary zoning, this project was a PUD. |t does conply
with the mninmum anounts required, and it offers five
dedi cated three-bedroom units, which is what we have
considered the benefit or the anenity that cones with it,
cones with the new anenities and benefits.

| will point out that the overall PUD was approved
prior to |IZ inplenmentation. At that tinme, the Applicant

of fered affordable housing as an anenity, and it offered
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approximately 160,000 square feet of affordable housing
t hr oughout the PUD, to be placed in certain |ocations and to
be delivered within certain tinmes. That anenity was of fered
in addition to a variety of other anenities.

One of the primary anenities of this PUD being 4th
Street and the re-opening of that and the creation of the
town center. At the tinme, they bal anced the anenities and
benefits against the devel opnent incentives and they said
that it nmatched or that it bal anced, that it worked.

In this application, we are not asking for any
addi ti onal devel opnent incentives or flexibility. Therefore,
we are clearly required to conply with IZ. As | said, we are
offering the five three-bedroomunits, which had conme out of
neetings and discussions with the ANC as being a very
i nportant priority to them

What we heard from the conmunity, however, was
that the conmunity center was a primary, primary priority for
this community. So we've worked very hard to add that to the
anenities and benefits of this project at great expense and
time. We believe that with the additional benefit of the 5
t hree-bedroomunits, and with the overall PUD, we add in our
| Z the effective rate of affordable housing for this project
i s approxi mately 15 percent.

When you | ook at the PUD overall, we believe that

i s an appropriate anount, given the bal anci ng test and gi ven
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the conpeting priorities for the project. At this point, we
haven't changed our original proffer. W just went into nore
detail about why we believe that what we've provided is
sufficient.

COW SSI ONER  MVAY: ['"'m sorry; I'm a little
conf used. The 160,000 square feet that was part of the
original proffer has already been delivered?

MS. SHI KER: No, 80, 000 has been delivered, and
80,000 wll be delivered in the northeast building. 80,000
was split between the east and west towers.

COWMM SSI ONER MAY:  What you' re providi ng here, the
extra 8 percent of these two buildings, is above and beyond
t hat 1607

M5. SHIKER That is correct. It is not counted
toward that original benefit.

COMM SSI ONER MAY: That's how you get all the way
up to 15 percent.

M5. SHI KER: The effective rate of approximtely
-- | thinkit's 14.78, but it's approximately in that nunber.

COWMM SSI ONER  MAY: | understand that argunent.
"1l et that be digested for the nonent. Sone of the other
poi nts?

MS. SH KER:. Sure, of course. For LEED, in this
case, the original PUD talked about sustainable design

el ements being LEED certified, or silver, at that tinme, which
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was quite a bit lower. In this case, the project is aimng
to design to a LEED silver certification, under Version 4.
This is what, about a year and a half ago, would have been
consi dered gol d. It's now silver. That's where we have
| anded.

Again, given that this is a nodification and the
bal ancing test is always done in the first-stage PUD, we
haven't proffered this as an anenity, but we have comm tted
that it will be designed to a LEED silver certification, with
the potential additional of solar panels, or we even
di scussed, in our recent submssion -- I'mgoing to say it
wrong -- solar hot water. W are evaluating that as well.
We've had so much focus on our comunity center that we
didn't have a chance to fully vet this, which is why we're
proposing them tonight, and then would ask to be able to
suppl enent the record, depending if the Conm ssion |iked the
sol ar panel s.

But with that addition, we would get sone
addi tional points, putting up further in the sustainable
desi gn. Again, we are conpliant with the first-stage
requi rements to design to certain sustainable levels. W are
exceedi ng those, but we're not offering it as an anenity.

COWMM SSI ONER MAY:  For the original Stage 1 that
was approved 15 years ago --

M5. SH KER: But we're exceeding that.
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COW SSI ONER MAY:  -- during ny first tinme on the

Zoni ng Conm ssion -- yes, exceeding.

M5. SHI KER: But we are trying to incorporate
sol ar panel .

COWMWM SSI ONER MAY:  We' Il cone back to that. Wat
about the question of actual certification?

M5. SHI KER: The reason why t he zoni ng regul ati ons
were changed to say that it would be Design 2 is that you
typically can't get certification until about a year-year and
a half after you deliver your building, so the Zoning
Administrator's Ofice has found it very difficult toconfirm
that you've gotten certification if it doesn't happen until
after Cof O

COW SSI ONER MAY: | understand, but that's a
wordsm thing thing. You can state that you're going to aim

for this nunber of points, so that you can get to LEED Gol d,

and that's the target, and you'll have to still go through
certification. W understand that. It's always possible
m ght m ss. You can always put in |anguage that would

address that sort of situation.
M5. SHHKER: The intent is to be certified.
COMM SSI ONER MAY: Ckay. Thank you.
M5. SH KER: Yes, thank you.
COMM SSI ONER MAY:  If you're proffering that you

are going to attenpt certification, that's the question we're
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trying to get answered.

MS.  SHI KER Yes, we are attenpting to get
certification.

COW SSI ONER MAY: All right, that's good. | have
no doubt that Perkins East man, who's done all of those LEED
gold school buildings and stuff, ought to be able to get
there, right?

PARTI Cl PANT: W hope so.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  On the sol ar panel question,
| see the diagram \Were are those going to be, and am |
going to see thenf?

M5. SH KER: They will be set back one to one.
|"mgoing to ask Brett to pull that picture up.

COW SSI ONER MAY: | see better than one to one.

M5. SHIKER  They're going to be on the setback
line one to one. Where we're having an issue is that given
the fact that the -- there's no private habitable space up
there. It is just all anmenity space.

COMM SSI ONER MAY: | think that's a good thing.

M5. SHI KER: It does neet all of the setback
requirenents. Wth that amenity space, you put the
mechani cal equi pnment on top. As such, you have | ess space
to get it in within the 20 feet because you have open air
sections. W have about 450 square feet where we could put

solar panels, but that only got us to .1 percent of the
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bui | ding' s energy usage, which we didn't think was great, so
we've been trying to brainstorm different ways to do it.
Brad, if you' d like to talk briefly about that.

MR, SWATOCHA: The 450 square feet that Christy
was referring to is over on the east buil ding.

COW SSI ONER  MAY: W're nostly going to be
focused on what it |ooks |ike.

MR SW ATOCHA: Right. So, the intent, as we're
| ooking at this, istryingto creatively brainstormlocations
for the solar panels. The first approach was to actually
construct the nmechanical screen wall out of the solar pane
on the south orientations of the screening. |If you can see
nmy nouse up here, along this roughly 180-foot |ength of the
pent house, and then along this roughly 20-foot |ength here

COMM SSI ONER MAY: W don't see your nouse.

MR, SWATOCHA: Sorry; | don't know -- just the
south facing screen walls. | don't know how to make the
nouse show up.

COMM SSI ONER MAY: | think we can figure that out,
so sout h-facing sections of the screen walls.

MR. SWATOCHA: Correct. \When we | ooked at the
study of nmaking the screen wall itself out of the solar
panels, we're only allowed to sl ope those screen walls at 20

percent off of vertical, which takes you to about 72 degrees.
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Havi ng the panels oriented that vertical results
In a trenendous efficiency drop in the panels. The second
or alternate approach that we' ve been | ooking at is actually
pul ling the array outside of the footprint of the nmechanical
screen walls, so that it is angled at that 45 degrees, which
I's much closer to optimal for the angle. And being able to
get a panel in there, our early estimtes are show ng about
a 21-kilowatt array, which gets us very close to 1 percent
of the total electrical demand on the buil ding.

We see it as an opportunity to use found space on
the roof. W do recognize that there will be sone visual
i mpact. And what we're also trying to balance is the idea
that we want to maintain the green roof belowthat, so there
are certain offset requirenents that those panels do need to
stay above that surface. So it's a balancing of trying to
find the best opportunity for solar and mai ntain green roof.

COWM SSI ONER  MAY: So what is the nmechanica
syst enf?

MR, SW ATOCHA: The current plan is for a VRF
system

COMWM SSI ONER MAY: What are we seeing in these
gray blobs that are there within the nechanical ?

MR,  SW ATOCHA: You're seeing all the VRF
condenser units, the condenser --

( Si nul t aneous speaki ng.)
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COW SSI ONER MAY:  Are they individual by unit?

MR SWATOCHA: It's not individual by unit. |
am not a nechani cal engineer, but it's roughly 12, | think,
units to a condenser. Then the | arger rectangles that you're
seeing are the dedicated outside air units. Those are the
very large units.

COW SSI ONER  MAY: The VRF units are actually
pretty small, aren't they?

MR, SW ATOCHA: They are getting nore conpact, but
with recent projects and those units up on dunnage, they do
take up approxinmately the full height of a seven to eight
f oot encl osed nechani cal space. Their footprint does result
in -- because of the nunber of units, does result in a large
occupi ed nechani cal space.

COMM SSI ONER MAY: |1'd | ook at that question, too,
to see if there's sonme way to work it in within the encl osed
mechani cal space, potentially even -- since there were
sections of non-accessible green roof, | guess that's what
you were | ooki ng at before, but it seens |ike there m ght be
-- maybe there's space there. | don't know.

| think that the -- | have a real question about
t he sketch that you were showi ng, just because | don't think
we want to have pyranmidal tops on buildings as part of the
nmechani cal systens. Maybe it'lIl |ook okay, but | fear the

outcome of this, that this is going to wind up becom ng
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standard practice and we'll see nmany of these things.
They're going to look like the faux mansard rooves of the
1970s that we're still cursed wth. If you could just do
sone sort of drawi ng that shows that, | think that woul d hel p
if, in fact, you think that's going to be a viable solution.
Maybe in further examnation it won't be.

M5. SHI KER: Shall | continue now?

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Yes, we can go quickly through
the other OP issues.

M5. SHHKER I'll go quickly. There were specific
guesti ons about the depth of the nullions, and we did provide
addi ti onal docunments today showi ng what the depth of those
mullions are. O fice of Planning asked us to commt to an
interimretail strategy. W put together |anguage, and we
submtted that. | also referenced that in ny opening
st at enent .

COWMM SSI ONER MAY: What is that | anguage?

M5. SHHKER: It is basically that we woul d conm t
to a conbi nati on of a canpai gn for vacant storefronts and for
popup retail tenancies for portions of the building, to the
extent that things weren't being able to be |leased in the
first vyear. We put together some ideas, asked for sone
flexibility to put arts, design, and creati on type popup uses
in there if we aren't able to | ease the retail inmediately.

Then with respect to the balconies, when we originally
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submtted the plans, we were about 18-19 percent bal coni es.
Si nce then, the design teameval uated the buil ding and we are
now at 35 percent of the residential units in the East M
Street buil ding.

There's about, specifically, 100 units. Then we
have 36 percent of the residential units in the West MStreet
bui I ding, which is a sizable increase, alnbst a double from
where we originally were. W believe that this percentage
of bal conies is appropriate, especially when gi ven t he anount
of public terrace and anenities space that's outdoors.

Thi s buil ding has the benefit of having different
| evel s, and there's quite a few different terraces that
peopl e can access. W th that doubling of the bal conies since
the original filing and these publicly accessible anenity
terrace to the residential units, we felt that that was a
sufficient nunmber. Then we provided sone updates that we
woul d make sure that the -- the | ast question that OP had was
maki ng sure that in the east building, the bi ke storage room
woul d connect to the | obby. W have nade sure that we can
do that, and we have updated plans on that.

COMM SSI ONER MAY: | just have one ot her questi on,
which is that we have the material s buckets that you gave us,
as opposed to a board. What | don't understand is what's
what. W have three different colors of brick on one of the

bui | di ngs, and we have one color of brick on the other. Do
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you want to explain sone of that?

MR SWATOCHA: | can maybe pull up an el evation
and | can tal k through sone of the -- if we start wth 375,
It's actually a very sinple material palette. The primry
building is -- there are two of the redder, purplish brick.
The intent there is that it would actually be a blend of
those two bricks for the primary tower.

We do have a bl end, but the panel is considerably
| arge, so we did not bring that with us. Then the third
brick is the brick that's being introduced as the base of the
comrunity center, so the retail that is below the community
center would be that separate brick, to really give that
centralized portion of the building a distinct |ook, gives
it, as a darker brick, a kind of anchor to the ground for the
floating glass structure above. That sane brick would al so
be repeated on the pavilion-type structure that is the
two-story piece on the eastern side of the building. Four
twenty-fiveis also avery sinple material palette, with only
one brick being used for the base of the building, the idea
of this stronger masonry base at the retail, supporting a
| i ghter expression of these glass fiber reinforced concrete
panel s above, on the towers above.

W' re showi ng, as kind of an offset opportunity
to warm up the building and the nunber of bal conies, the

i ntroduction of a wood-like material as a liner to those
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bal conies, on the interior of those, that will be seen from
the ground, and then the use of the two different netal
colors, primary mullion and netal panel materials, wth the
corner being the darker netal -- | believe that's Nunber One
-- and then the in-fill within the overall tower frane being
the lighter netal panel.

COW SSI ONER MAY: Ckay, thank you. | just have
one coment on this, which is that | would be very cautious
about using the lighter-colored <cenentitious panels,
particul arly when you have significant bal conies, and there's
a lot of in and out with the gl ass because of the tendency
for dirt to collect and to get washed off, and then get
washed down the buil ding. Then you have a streaky white
buil ding. There are ways to detail it to make it | ook good,
but when you're dealing with sonmething that's so flat and
nodern in its treatnent, a very nice building could | ook
great in year one and | ook terrible in year five.

MR. SW ATOCHA: V' | | take that into
consi derati on.

COWMM SSI ONER MAY: Last question | have is about
the bike storage. Did | see bike storage all the way down
to the second garage |evel ?

MR  SW ATOCHA: We did not have the intent of
showi ng bi ke storage at the |ower garage, only the first

| evel and in the | oading dock, at grade.
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COW SSI ONER MAY:  (Okay, great. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay, Comm ssioner Shapiro?

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Thank you, M. Chair, just
a fewpoints in addition to Conm ssioner's May question. One
I s the public space el enent that you tal ked about, where are
you | ooking to do that?

M5. SHI KER: Can you please bring up the Metro
Pl aza?

COW SSI ONER  SHAPI RO | was sensitive to the
ANC s, | guess, slightly snarky coment that the first
version of this was nowhere near adequate, so |'m curious
about what the intentions are this tine.

M5. SHI KER: The original approval included sone
very lowjetted fountains, seating, and trees. W' ve | earned
that's not what people want, even though that was what was
approved nmany years ago. David, why don't you talk alittle
bit about you all's discussion?

MR D. SMTH  Qur discussion pretty much -- we
heard the concern that -- the three fountains, not three
hoses, not being adequate for a destination of this size.
W are, in conjunction with the other owners, nmeeting with
the ANC to understand and identify what that can becone.
Because we've all got to participate in this. Sonewhere in
the plaza area, we're not sure where, but sonething to

signify a sense of arrival. W're not sure what |evel that
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s, if it's in the ground, what that is. Wth DDOT' s
approval , working with the ANC and t he ot her owners, we would
I dentify that design and conme up with that in short order.

M5.  SHI KER: W Dbasically, in our comunity
benefits agreenent, which was submtted on March 16th, we
commtted to the ANC to work with them and then while the
east building, whichis the first building to be constructed,
IS under construction, we would have that public space
el enent be under construction.

If it had to go back to the Zoning Conm ssion
because it sonehow changed, was outsi de the scope of what the
Zoni ng Conmm ssi on has approved, then we woul d cone back for
a nodi fication, probably, of consequence, for the Conm ssion
to review that, or if it was in public space, we would go
t hrough the DDOT approval to get that.

COMM SSI ONER SHAPI RO | appreciate that. The
process that you describe sounds very healthy. Part of the
difficulty for nme sonetines with this is | don't know how to
nmeasur e what kind of benefit it is because there's typically
not a dollar anpbunt connected to it. It's hard to say, at
this point. You have neasured sone of the other -- |
appreciate the specificity with which you described the
benefit that the conmunity center is, $500, 000 for build out,
$50, 000 for the FF&E, $90,000 for the CAM and real estate

t axes.
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W'l | probably have sone issues wth the
utilities. | know the ANC does. "' m curious why that, of
all things, woul d be the sticking point because it seens |ike
a much smal |l er dol |l ar anount, but what do you i magi ne you're
going to be investing in, as a collective, around this public
space el enent ?

MR D. SMTH. At this point, | can't say. W've
got to work with our neighboring owners. |It's a collective
I nvestnent, and we are -- | can't give you an answer on that
right now, but we are --

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO You coul d take the Warren
Buf fet approach, which is if you throw out what you're
willing to coomit, you mght get the other philanthropic
interests to also commit sonething simlar, but | would
appreci ate you taking the |l ead on this because it's obvi ously
going to have a special inpact on you.

MR D. SMTH: Sure, and we wll, but at this
point, today, | can't say what that is. W wll |ead that.

COMM SSI ONER SHAPI RO kay, thank vyou. Wi | e
we're onit, | knowit's going to cone up with the ANC, but
what's the issue with the utilities? O all the things that
you're offering, | just can't imagine it's that nmuch noney.

MR D. SMTH.  Wen we started the process, just
the back and forth, the negotiating, we offered a certain

anount for ten vyears, rent free, fixed rent, and the
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community center paying their CAM and t axes.

When t hat went back and forth, they'd have no way
to do that, we've always -- maybe it was m sconmuni cati on,
but we don't know what that operation is, how they're going
to use it, what they're going to use it for, as far as
el ectric use. That is sonething that is pretty nuch vari able
with each tenant. O fice |leases, typical |eases, that is
borne by the occupant, non-profit or whoever that is because
we just don't know. We're not in that business. One of the
things we did was to give $15,000 for that first year, to
hel p defray that cost, believing that a successful operation
woul d be able to, in subsequent years, provide that. Ve
don't know what that is. The total anobunt is pretty hefty,
i ncluding the loss of rent on the main space.

COMM SSI ONER SHAPI RG: | really appreciate the
commitnent. | think the ANC does, too. It just feels |like
there should be a way to -- you're going to have deeper
pockets than they will. It just feels |like there should be
a way to address this, even if it's a fixed anount that you
proffer. | don't know howto do it, but it just feels |ike
it's a mnor thing to be such a big sticking point.

MR D. SMTH We'll look into it.

COMWM SSI ONER SHAPI RO Thank you. | don't have
any ot her questions for now, M. Chair.

CHAI RMVAN  HOQOD: Al l right, t hank  you.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

49

Conmmi ssi oner Turnbul | .

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Thank you, M. Chair. |
don't want to | eave M. VanPelt out here. M. VanPelt, |ust
for the record, looking at all the comments that Departnent
of Transportation nade, is there anything you' re not doing?

MR VANPELT: | think we've had pretty extensive
di al ogue with DDOT on this project over nmany nonths, and |
think quite a bit over the | ast coupl e weeks, since the staff
report cane out. I think we have addressed all of DDOT's
concerns. There are sone things that wll need further
study, and those have been identified.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: | was just goi ng back over
their report on Page 20 and 21. They have a few things they
wanted you to go back -- it sounds |li ke you nay have al r eady
done that, but | just wanted to be sure.

MR.  VANPELT: Cormm ssioner Turnbull, | believe
we've addressed all of their concerns, and | think we
articulated that in our response, and then the materi al s that
were submtted along with that response.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL.: kay, thank you. M.
Smth, I'mglad you brought up the garden hose conment. |t
was expressly, finely witten in the ANC report. | thought
that was -- | don't know what they saw or what sketch you
showed them but it apparently wasn't that -- it didn't make

a big inmpact on them That's going to be one of the issues
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you're going to be working on with them On the community
center, | realize -- | can understand your point of view
about the electrical and the rate.

The ot her question they had was about the picking

of an operations nanager. There was a question of their
| nput on the manager who's going to be running this. ' m
just trying to -- I'mnot sure what that was, if you could

explain a little bit about that.

MR D. SMTH: Sur e. | n our discussions, we've
been -- fromthe begi nning, when the concept first arose, we
wer e asking who's going to run the comunity center. As an
owner, we want to meke sure that is working, that 1is
operational early on, and that is consistently run in a
wel | - done manner.

W don't doubt that they will endeavor to get that

operated. W just don't know who it is. As an owner, we

want the building to do well. That's a big part of it, with
a frontage right on M Street. W just want it to be
successful. W were just saying nutual -- | believe nutual

approval of that entity.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: So they will have i nput
no matter what?

MR D. SMTH: Yes.

COMWM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Especially on review of

operation practices and what they're doing to naintain it,
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just so that -- we talk about electrical rates. The
operations manager is going to be the one who's really going
to be followmng all that and nmaking sure that things are
turned off or on running appropriately. | would think they
woul d want to review sone of that on an annual basis or a
sem -annual basis, | woul d think.

MR D. SMTH. Sure. W had no intent of being
dom nant in selecting that person. W're expecting themto
cone to us, and that was what the di scussion was about, wth
an operator. W just want to nake sure that it's a viable
operator and we go forward, but we have no intent of stifling
t hat .

M5. SHIKER | think the cormment in the ANC report
was that they wanted to have sol e discretion. The owner and
Applicant have just asked that they be part of the
deci si on- maki ng process.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Okay. | understand that,
then. GCetting back to the I1Z and your -- | still think we'd
like to see a larger 1Z entity, rather than the -- |
under stand where you're comng fromon that. W always |ike
to see nore. Regarding the bal conies, you' ve got 36 percent

of the nunber of units have bal coni es.

Do you know of f hand -- and naybe you can't answer
-- how many of those 1Z units -- do the |IZ units have
bal conies? | |ooked at the plans. | see sonme |Z units have
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bal coni es. Is the proportion of 1Z units with bal conies
proportioned to the market rate units with bal coni es?

M5. SHHKER. The 1Z location plan that's in the
record at Exhibit 13-H | think it is, was based on the plan
prior to incorporation and the community center. We had
I ndicated in a nost recent subm ssion that we'd be updating
that plan. W can | ook at that.

| don't know if we have the answer for you right
now, but we can look at that question as we're doing the
| ocation plan and be able to respond to that in a post
heari ng subm ssion. As | noted earlier, we cane really cl ose
to the deadline working with the ANC to finalize this, so
some things just didn't conpleted as early as we woul d have
hoped.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: If you could, in that,
too, the strategy on how you're placing I1Z units, the mx
around the building. oviously, sone views are better than
others. Hopefully, you're giving a fair selection as you go
around the buil di ngs.

M5. SHHKER We will submt that for the record
for your review.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL.: kay, thank you. The
pent house, | ooking at the penthouse, what's hard to tell --
there's really no |larger scale. | didn't see very

| ar ge-scal e pl ans. | saw sonme fairly small-scale plans,
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unl ess you submtted sonet hing.

M5. SHHKER: In the original application, we had
very detailed plans showi ng the heights of each wall, the
set backs, and we had sections through. Those were in the --

they were in this nost recent subm ssion, on March 16th, as
well. |If you |look at Pages 51 and 52 -- no, thisisn't it.
This is the one that has the color coding to show you the

hei ghts of the plans, and then there are bl own-up sections,
as well. But we have reviewed to confirmthat no relief is
requi red for the penthouse.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: What pl ans are you tal ki ng
about ?

M5. SH KER: The suppl enment al pre-hearing
subm ssion plans filed on March 16th, in the record.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: |I'm | ooking at your big
vol ume from March 19th
MR, SW ATOCHA: Maybe Page 105 and 106. In the

current subm ssion, it's Page 101 and 102 has the enl arged

secti ons.

MS. SHI KER: 105 and 106, too.

MR.  SW ATOCHA: Sheets 105 and 106 show the
secti ons.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: A plan, is there a bl owp
of a plan, swmring pool? 1Is there a fireplace? Are there

grills or tables? |Is there awnings?
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MR SWATOCHA: |f you |look on Page L --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Did | mss that?

MR SW ATOCHA: -- L-6 and L-7, L-6 and L-8,
actually, it's the | andscape plans, shows the definition of
the occupied spaces, the outdoor occupied spaces at the
pent house level. There is a pool on each building.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Is there a fire pit? 1Is

there grills? Are you show ng anything up there?

MR SW ATOCHA: Yes, there are a nunmber of
grilling |ocations being shown at the upper l|evel, and I
believe only at the upper roof |evel.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: | guess what woul d be good

M5. SHIKER: W could ask Trini Rodriguez to cone
up and --

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: | guess | would like to

see a better plan of those, and I'd |ike to know about the

lighting, up lighting/down lighting for that. Since you're
going for LEED-certified solar, 1'd like to nmake sure that
-- know what kind of lighting is going to be up there.

MR, SW ATOCHA: Sure. W can certainly submt
addi ti onal docunentation on that. The intent is primarily
down lighting, so when dark skies approach.

COWMWM SSI ONER TURNBULL: We all want people to use

t he roof. That's going to be -- that's a very valuable
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space. But at the sane tine, the inpact of nei ghbors across
the street and what that does, so | think if we could get a
little bit better description or see sone draw ngs that m ght
describe it alittle bit better, that would be good, and the
hours of operation, | guess, of the rooftop.

M5. RCODRI GUEZ: Just quickly, good evening, for
the record, Trini Rodriguez with the firm of Parker
Rodri guez. The plan you have in front of you on the screen
actually shows the courtyards, the rooftop terraces and the
courtyards. You can see there is a |level second courtyard
that is sunken, so that one is interior.

W have a fourth-1level courtyard, which is in the
center of the building, and then there is two upper-|evel
terraces, which are on the rooftop. One to the left is a
smal|l rooftop, which has -- you see the gray area wth
grills, and then small sitting areas on the sides. Al of
that has, also, sone green inserted. The idea for the
illumnation of all of these rooftop terraces is actually
very soft lighting. W don't really want to have these --

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: That's what | was hopi ng,
but I wonder if you could show ne sonething that --

M5. SH KER: W can provide better detail ed plans
for you.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL.: For the record. Ckay.

Hours of operation, you goto 10:00 p.m, you go to m dni ght?
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MR D. SMTH Sorry about that. R ght now, it'l|

probably be around 11:00.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  You'll allow nusic --

MR D. SMTH  Yes, but --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: -- a flat screen TV up
t here?

MR D. SMTH: As far as nusic goes, it's
controlled by the nmanager, so we're not all ow ng boom boxes
and that to blast nmusic out. As far as the other --

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Fl at screens on the walls
that can be seen fromthe street?

MR D. SMTH: No. That stuff will be inside the
club room

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: | saw the conmunity room
so | was assum ng you would do that, but | just wanted to be
sure. The only other thing | had is in Exhibit No. 13. It
was Page 27, your flexibility on materials. | think you nade
a change in sone of the | anguage you' ve used in the past.

You've got refinenents to the buil dings. You
crossed out exterior materials. | think you need to talk
with OAG a bit nore about going back and refining that
because | think once you' ve shown us materials, we don't want
changes in materials after the fact. | think we need to just
tighten up that |anguage on that.

MS. SH KER: Ckay. We can do that, and we can
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submt that for review

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: All right, thank you. M.
Chair, that's all | have.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Thank you. Vice Chair.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Thank you, M. Chairnman, and
t hank you for your presentation this evening and for all of
your efforts to be responsive to coments by the Zoning
Comm ssion, the Ofice of Planning, DDOT, ANC, and others in
the community. M coll eagues have covered a | ot of ground,
sol'"ll try to be brief. On the inclusionary zoning, you're
providing -- | appreciate that you increased -- | think you
i ncreased, fromset down, the nunber of three-bedroomunits
fromfour to five.

M5. SHIKER: That's correct.

VICE CHAIR MLLER: | don't think you even have
any market-rate three-bedroomunits. It's just thelZ units.
The five are anongst the estinmated 48 units that Ofice of
Pl anni ng estimates would be occupied by the 39,000 square
feet of inclusionary zoning units.

| woul d concur with nmy col | eagues and with OP and

wi t h DHCD, who suggested that you consi der addi ng yet anot her

t hree- bedroom unit, in order to get beyond the mninum 8
percent set aside and to just -- to continue your good nodel
of providing famly sized units. | think that would be very
beneficial for the project. On the LEED silver issue, |
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realize this goes way back, but we're now -- as you know, we
really push applicants to go to LEED gold, and we see LEED
silver as an everyday mninmumthing. Maybe that's not fair
to a 15-year-old project, but you' ve cone back in for a
nodi fication, so you cone back in with the new m ndset and

where we are now with our standards.

Have you net with DOE? | appreciate the sol ar
which | think will help -- you said wll increase the points,
but you don't think it'll get you to the gold level. Have
you nmet with DOE to see what they -- if they had any ideas

of how you m ght be able to incorporate --

MR,  SW ATOCHA: To the first question about
whet her the solar will get us to the gold level, at this
point, we don't think the points to be gained fromthe size
of the array will get us to gold. W did neet with DOCE early
on, but have not nmet wth DOE recently on specific
recommendat i ons and neasures to get toward gol d.

VICE CHAIR M LLER. You m ght want to because |
think they often have sone fairly cost-efficient suggestions
that don't increase the cost greatly, but that m ght get you
the points that would be significant. | would encourage you
to have that nore recent nmeeting and report back to us if
there are any suggestions that you're able to incorporate.
|, too, would echo the comrents that the Applicant should

consi der covering the utility costs of that comrunity center.
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It's a great anenity.

It's what the community wanted, ANC wanted, and
it's 30 years of free space. Free space would be free space,
free. It can't be that nuch for this kind of project,
overall. O course, we're all adding things on to it that
we want you to do, so | realize that, as well.

| do like the materials, the color of the bricks.
| always |ike wood and that you've got, inside, one of the
bui l ding's balconies. | think that does warmit up. | do
| ove bal coni es on your residential buildings. The terraces,
| think that's great. Thirty-five percent is not
i nsignificant.

To the extent you can do nore, even though there
is all that outdoor and rooftop space, there's a |l ot of open
space that's being elimnated i n Sout hwest because of all the
devel opment. It's pretty devel opnent, but people see where
thisis being built. They' ve seenit, traditionally, as open

space, so to t he extent you can create as nmuch out door space

for the individual living units -- | just think they're
al ways nuch nore marketable. | wouldn't live in a high rise
wi t hout having a bal cony, no natter how many terraces and

rooftop and courtyards there were, but that's ne.
| didn't get a chance to look at the interim
retail strategy, which | think you provided today -- 1'Il

| ook at that -- while the space is | easing up and naki ng sure
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that it's active and that they're the sane ki nd of uses that
had been on that open space, farners' market or whatever's
been there these past several years.

| realize you're going to develop a retai

strategy, but do you have a vision of what -- | think it's
al nost 40,000 square feet of retail between the two
buildings. |s that correct? Do | have it right?

M5. SHHKER: That's correct.

VICE CHAIR M LLER | realize there's a |ot of
exciting retail at the Wharf, a lot of exciting retail at the
Yards, not so nuch exciting retail yet at -- what do we cal
this?

M5. SHI KER: Waterfront Station.

VICE CHAIR M LLER. Waterfront Station. | want
to say Waterside Mall. \What is the vision for the retail?
| realize you're going to develop a strategy with the
comruni ty.

MS. SHI KER: W're going to work wth the
comrunity as to what the current needs and desires are at the
time we start the |easing, but we also did engage Street
Sense. | could ask M. Smth to wal k up and tal k through --
he, based on his experience, prepared a summary of what are
those types of retail uses that are the right conbination to
create a place that nmaxim zes the retail client and creates

that town center. M. Smth.
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VICE CHAIR M LLER: Maybe just briefly.

M5. SHHKER. If you could just give a couple of
sentences. Thanks.

MR M SMTH:. Good evening. The goal hereis to
create an authentic nei ghborhood-oriented town center. A
successful, grocery-anchored nei ghborhood center i s anywhere
from40 to 50 percent anchor, the anchor being the existing
grocery store, 20 to 30 percent food and beverage, 20 to 30
percent nei ghborhood goods and services. That mx yields a
product that resonates wth the |ocal consuner. The
obj ective here was to satisfy the needs of the immediately
surroundi ng community -- that is the primary custoner, the
on-site and nearby residents, on-site and nearby office
workers -- and to create sonething that is authentically
nei ghbor hood ori ent ed.

| would argue that what's happening to the east
end capital riverfront is -- it doesn't satisfy some of those
nei ghbor hood qualities that we aspire to have here, nor does
the wharf, which is predomnantly food and beverage in
ori entation.

M5. SHI KER | would add that strategy is
consistent with the original approval, in which there was a
condition put on this PUD for nei ghborhood-serving retail.
That has al ways been the goal for this retail. Condition 13

of the Major Approval Oder 0238A gives you all kinds of
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exanpl es of things, and then M. Smth has just narrowed it
down as what is that right balance of these types of
nei ghbor hood-serving retail uses.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Thank you very nuch. That's
it, M. Chairman, for now, thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Thank you. You had a questi on,
then I'l1 follow

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO. Very, very qui ck questi on.
Dd | see that there were two dog runs at two different
fl oors, one above each other? | just hadn't seen that
before. | was curious.

MR, SWATOCHA: That may be a naming error or a
titling error. 1 think what happened, we have only a single
dog run on each building, and single |evels. Wen we
reconfigured the | oading docks --

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO That makes nore sense.
was going to say kill one of the dog runs and do the
el ectricity. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: M. VanPelt, | heard this question
the other day fromone of the BZA nenbers to soneone in the
public, so I'mgoing to start using that question mnyself.
When you did your analysis, did you use the book, or did you
go out there and see, actually, what's going on in that area?

MR, VANPELT: W always do on-site observati ons.

That's part of what our engineers do. W use the book. W
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refine our assunptions based on what we see in the field.
That's just part of our overall nethodology. W don't work
on any -- fortunately, we've done a lot of work in this
nei ghbor hood, so we're very famliar with it already, very
famliar.

But | think we also go back out, as we're doing
our analysis, and we | ook at the results that we're getting
as we do our baseline and | ook at existing conditions, does
t hat nmake sense in our nodels, and validate it that way, yes.

CHAI RMVAN  HOQOD: Sonme of the mtigation factors

that you had in the surrounding area -- and |'m not just
tal ki ng about M Street -- let nme talk about M Street for a
mnute. | had the opportunity to work at Waterside Mall for
years. | left with the EPA

Let nme just ask you, what is traffic |like on M
Street? | knowhowit used to be. Has it inproved any? |'m
asking, actually, because | don't really go over there
because there was a whole lot of traffic when | was there,
so now | 've stopped conming. Wat is traffic like? Wth the
mtigation that you all have proposed, sone of the mtigation
factors, howis that going to inprove the flow on M Street?
Because that's a |l ot of cut-through traffic.

MR. VANPELT: Right. | think that there is nore
traffic associated with the Wharf, and then there's nore

devel opnent that is yet to cone. W' ve |ooked at that and
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taken that into account in our future projections. | think
there have been sone increases in the volune, certainly,
al ong that corridor.

| think one of the benefits of residential here

Is that we are tal king about -- as opposed to office, what
| tal ked about in the presentation is what was previously
approved woul d have generated a lot nore traffic than what
IS now approved with residential. That's a big benefit.

I think we al ways have a tendency to overesti nate.
Even on residential, we have a tendency to overestinmate the
nunber of vehicular trips that are usually generated. These
are residential sites right on top of a Metro station, so |

think that there's a lot of benefit. There's other transit

anenities in the neighborhood. Even with that, the
mtigations that we identified in the report are really
things that are just signal timng tweaks. That is enough

to really adjust any inpact that the delay associated with
this project would have. On top of that, we've offered a TDM
pl an, and DDOT has said we want that to be even nore robust,

and we worked with them on that.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: I n your analysis, you nentioned
signal timng. In your analysis, does it also include what's
going on on South Capitol Street? | know you make that
right, it kind of backs up on M Street. As far as your
analysis -- I'mnot holding you to this because I know we' ve
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got stadiumtraffic and sone other things going on, too, as
well. W're soon going to have the soccer stadium |[Is al
that included in your anal ysis?

MR VANPELT: Qur study area for this project
didn't go all the way down to South Capitol Street. | think
what we do, when we go t hrough the scopi ng process w th DDOT,
t he purpose of an inpact study is not necessarily to try to
solve all of the transportation concerns and |ook at the
entire |arger neighborhood and all of Southwest. It's to
| ook at what do we think the inpacts of this project are
going to be, and howdo we nmtigate those. W go through our
scopi ng process, we | ook at what do we think the sphere of
i nfluence will be, if you wll, in terns of nunber of
intersections that are likely to be inpacted.

We |l ook at that, and we | ook at how the traffic
then dissipates as it gets on the network. Then we go out
to what we think is the limt that really hel ps us | ook at
the inpacts and try to figure out how t hose i npacts m ght be
mtigated. Any traffic that's com ng down from Sout h Capit ol
Street or going down in MStreet corridor from South Capitol
Street, that's in our counts as it cones into the study area
t hat we | ooked at.

CHAI RMAN HOQD: | realized, after | asked you
that, that question's probably going to be better served for

DDOT. Let ne also ask you about -- | guess this is you --
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whoever, Ms. Shiker. | noticed, when | was reading -- | just
didn't understand it. | think there are two showers in one
bui I ding and ei ght | ockers in one building, and there's two
showers in another building and twenty |ockers in another
building. | don't understand the rationale to that. What
Is two and eight, two and twenty?

MR, VANPELT: The requirenents for showers and
| ockers in the building are based on the non-conmmercial --
non-residential uses of the building. There's a threshold
of 25,000 square feet. The east buil ding, which does have
the community center, the office, and the retail, crosses
t hat threshol d. There are requirenments for the showers.
Then the | ockers at a percentage of the | ong-termbi ke spaces
that are required.

CHAI RMAN  HOOD: That's in the east building,
ri ght?

MR, VANPELT: That's in the east building. Inthe
west building, the non-residential space is below the
threshold to require showers or | ockers, but Forest City has
offered to add those elenents to the building as an anenity
tothe retail spaces. It will help support, | think, the use
of bicycle networks to get tothe retail for those enpl oyees.
Al'l those | ockers and showers in the east buil ding are above
and beyond what is required for the zoning regul ations.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: |I'm going to ask this question.
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| was going to ask this question when you all first cane to
me years ago, but | have a new question to ask. Who, from
t he nei ghborhood, is on your devel opnent teanf

MR D. SM TH: There are no -- we live in the
nei ghbor hood, but in Southeast, down at the Yards, but not
one specifically from Sout hwest is on the devel opnent team

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  You tried to answer that question.
I'"'mgoing to ask it again. Who, on your devel opnent team
I's fromthe nei ghborhood?

MR D. SMTH  Nobody is --

( Si nul t aneous speaki ng.)

CHAI RMAN HOCD: That's all -- nobody. |[If | had
been asking that when we first heard that, naybe by now we
woul d have had sonebody. That's ny normal, standard
guestion. If I"mhere in ten years, when you all cone back
for nodification or sonmething, | will ask the sane questi on.
Ms. Shi ker, help ne understand about the first source. s
that still relevant? Help ne understand about that and CBE.

MS. SH KER: Yes, Chairnman Hood. There was a
comritnent in the original PUDto comrit to First Source and
CBE. That comm tnent has been upheld with every building in
this developnment, and it is proffered for these two
buil dings. | believe that we provided both drafts of those
agreenments with our application, as well as a track record

for Forest City in conplying with that in our prehearing
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subm ssi on

CHAI RVAN HOOD: My | ast conversationwththe Gty
was that was no | onger being done, so | want to nmake sure,
can we look into that? Can you all verify that? Because
with this devel opnent, things have changed. This has been
going on for awhile. | believe there's sonething else going
on wiwth First Source. A lot of other devel opers have been
com ng down and proffering sonething else, their own thing.

| would ask you to look into that. That's one of

the things that | want to see. Make sure that it's stil

rel evant -- | know what you've done in the past, but going
forward. |If not, you need to cone back with a proposal so
we can still do it. | don't want to discount it, but sone

devel opers have been coming up with their own First Source
and their own CBE, so let's see what we can do.

MR D. SMTH Can | just nmake a qui ck statenent?

CHAI RVAN HOCOD:  Sur e.

MR D. SMTH W have, on staff, a guy by the
name of Andre Banks, who works with all the Ellis DBE and t he
First Source office to make sure we are conpliant, regular
neeti ngs on each project that we have, nmake sure that we are
above the conpliance | evels. W have that ingrained in what
we deliver. | think on Elliott on Fourth, we were wel | above
35 percent.

MS. SHI KER: Chai rman Hood, | wunderstand your
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gquestion because the First Source office has said that for
new PUDs comng forward, they will not allow First Source
agreenents to go forward, so that's why you' ve been seeing
different types of enploynent and workforce training
pr ogr ans.

|"ve had that in other PUD cases. Because this
PUD has that comm tnent and has the agreenents ongoi ng, we
w || doubl e-check, but it's been our experience that we've
been able to continue under that program but we'll confirm
and | et you know.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Since it's been going on for a

while, you're probably already in the pipeline. It's
grandfathered in, and they're doing that. Let's just nmake
sure.

M5. SHKER:. W will confirmand |et you know.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Al so, | saw your track record, but
|l et's make sure that we're really | ooking out for the pool.
What |'ve always said is that we need to make sure we work
with the ANC, so we can nmake sure that the pool of fol ks who
live in the neighborhood are the ones who will be getting
t hose jobs, not the Philadel phia tags.

Not hi ng agai nst Phil adel phia because they're
Wi nni ng everything right now, but we want to nmake sure that
we are looking out for District residents. My col | eague

wants to -- |'ve got another question, but ny colleague's
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chonping at the bit to get that mc, so I'"mgoing to yield
to him He's got sonething -- he nust be in |ine with what
"' m saying. Go ahead.

COW SSI ONER SHAPIRG:  It's not totally in line
wth what you're saying, M. Chair, so if you want to
conti nue upon your train, it's --

CHAI RVAN HOOD: No, go ahead.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO You triggered sonething
about what you were saying about the nei ghborhood-serving
retail and the percentage that's required. It's adifficult
thing to do, and sone of it is about the rents that you can
charge, conpared to other things. You nentioned that you
were |ooking for some flexibility to create -- at the
nmezzanine level, to allowfor sone two-story retail. Isthis
in the east buil ding?

M5. SHIKER: This is at the corner of the west
bui | di ng. It is a two-story open space that, when the
changes were made to incorporate the conmmunity center and
| ocate the community-serving office in the east building, the
west buil di ng had sone revisions that happened.

Before, it wused to be second-floor office.
Instead, they decided to neke it as a two-story retail
corner, in order to match those di nensi ons on either side of
the gateway into 4th Street from M Street. When we were

| ooking at it, we thought what a great place to naybe have
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sone nmezzanine retail up there, but we haven't shown it on
our plans. That is what we were requesting, the flexibility
to incorporate a slight nezzanine up there, if you want to
show t he | ocati on.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO The concerns | woul d have
about it is that lends itself to sonme nore kind of
destinationretail. It's going to drive nore traffic. Wat
flexibility we're providing, what's the inpact of providing
that flexibility?

MR SW ATOCHA: Just quickly, looking at the
el evations here, you can see, at the --

COMM SSI ONER SHAPIRO: | don't think you're on.

MR, SWATOCHA: Sorry. |If you look at the right

| oner side of the elevation, that's where that two-story

conponent of the retail is, previously occupied by office at
t hat upper |evel. W have always -- Forest City has
envisioned the -- 1'Il close out quickly to junp to the plan.

The spaces on 4th Street, on both the west side of the street
and the Metro Pl aza have been identified as the kind of prine
| ocation for the food and beverage service that M. Smth
tal ked about earlier, really, as an opportunity to activate
the ground floor in that space. | think the vision is that
if there were a restaurant in that corner space, at the
ground floor, that would have outdoor seating, it's an

opportunity for a restaurant to either take advantage of it
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as a taller volunme of space or supplenent that wth

addi ti onal seating.

COMW SSI ONER  SHAPI RO In terns of t he
transportation study, that, | would inagine, would have an
| npact .

MR.  VANPELT: Yes, | think the transportation
study assunes a mx of retail. It's hard to tell, when we

do a transportation study, what exact type of retail or
restaurant's going to be there.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Yes, but restaurants drive
significantly nore traffic than nei ghborhood-serving --

( Si nul t aneous speaki ng.)

MR. VANPELT: They can, but what we do is we use
-- 1 don't want to say generic, but it's a bit of a generic
| and use code that has sonme of that m x of restaurant in it.
If it was all restaurant, it would certainly nake a
difference, but with what we're tal king about with a m x of
retail that assunes sone restaurant, it still should be in
the order of magnitude simlar.

COMW SSI ONER SHAPI RO kay, thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOQD: | will also echo, as well, wth
the 30 year free. | was thinking 99 years, but I'll stick
with the 30. | want you to really consider that in making
things free for that ANC. This ANC -- I'"'mnot just -- I"Il

say that with anybody who's developing this area. This ANC
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has put a lot of tinme in for the work that they have been
doi ng.

They put nore work in than people that get paid,
and they have a lot of projects that's going because this
Comm ssi on has seen them | really encourage you -- | don't
want you to think I'mjust picking on you all.

' mgoing to pick on everybody who cones down here
Iinthis areatotry to nake sure that we do our due diligence
as devel opers and residents of this city to make sure that
area gets the things they requested. I think 30 years is
bei ng very nodest, actually, what they requested. Even the
el ectricity issue, |'m saying 99 years, but you all have
negoti ated 30. | would ask that you all continue to work out
some of those differences as you go with the ANC. It's just
fair. Any other questions?

Does t he ANC have any cross-exam nation? Conme on
forward. You weren't sworn in? W' re going to swear you in.
| believe you, but we're going to swear you in. Ms.
Schellin, could you swear M. Litsky in?

MS. SCHELLIN: Yes. Please raise your right hand.
Do you solemly swear or affirm --

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Hol d on. Anybody el se that hasn't
been sworn in that's going to testify? |If you can stand at
the tine. Do we have a student class in here? W do? | did

this |ast week. Was it this week | did that? | want to know
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what school they're from but we'll get to them so be ready.

M5. SCHELLIN: Pl ease raise your right hand. Do
you solemly swear or affirmthe testinony you'll give this
evening will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothi ng but
the truth?

(Wtnesses sworn.)

MS. SCHELLIN. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOCD: We al ways get nervous when we see
peopl e just always taking good notes. W never know what's
goi ng to happen next. Okay, M. Litsky.

MR. LI TSKY: Thank you, M. Chairman, for the
opportunity. | do have a nunber of questions to the
Applicant and to sonme of the folks who are at table wth
them The DDOT report cites that ZR-16 requires showers and
| ockers, and they aren't currently shown properly on the pl an
that are set. Are you planning on providing then? | know
there was just a question about that.

M5. SHHKER® We worked with DDOT on the actua
nunber of showers and | ockers that were required. It was
determ ned that there are no showers and | ockers required in
the west building, but we are providing sone, and we are
exceedi ng the showers and | ockers that are required in the
west building. They were not shown on the plans, but they
will be.

MR. LI TSKY: Thanks. | know the question was
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asked, and | didn't follow the answer, so | had to ask it

nysel f.

M5. SHI KER They're required in the east
bui I ding, sorry; | m sspoke.

MR. LI TSKY: Ckay, swell. Has DDOT proposed a

plan for the WVATA vault to be finalized before this thing
I s approved? W've got -- so the conm ssioners understand,
we have a great big hunk of equipnent on M Street. Part of
the reason why | was del ayed today i s because traffic is tied
up beyond all belief after the baseball gane and because it's
cherry bl ossons and because it's Thursday.

W've got a large piece of equipnment that needs
to be gotten off of the roadway. | want to know if you have
wor ked with DDOT or DMPED or anybody to nove that out and
i ncorporate it into the project, so we don't have that
bl ocki ng up traffic?

MR D. SMTH: W have spoken with them not
recently, but early on, and we will continue to work with
themnore diligently to incorporate themand get that off the
road because that is -- we agree that is a problemand is a
concern. We will be working with themover the next year or
two to get that thing out of there.

MR, LITSKY: So that's part of what it is that
"Il testify to, but 1'mglad that you' re going to be working

with them On the Circulator and 74 bus stops, have you
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addressed this already with DDOT, how these bus stops are
going to work while construction is underway?

We've got the Circulator that's going to happen
In Southwest in July, and we've got the 74 bus that is
al ready over there. W don't want to have to have a
situation where the 74 bus, which does not currently -- in
front of what will be the 475 building -- have a bus shelter,
al t hough there had been a bus shelter across the street.

| want to nmake sure that the way the sidewalk is
set up -- have you incorporated it so that we're not going
to be required not to have a bus shelter there? That's a

problem for us, a big problem

MR. VANPELT: | think we did talk to DDOT about
those two bus stops, or | guess how to handle the two bus
routes. | think the response we heard fromDDOT is that we

woul d continue to coordinate with them to nake sure that
they're accomobdated, but we're not doing anything to
precl ude the bus stop from bei ng accommodat ed.

MR D. SMTH | think part of Andy's question is
during construction, howis that going to --

MR. LI TSKY: During construction, yes, | would
assune you' Il --

( Si nul t aneous speaki ng.)

MR LITSKY: -- anenities. | just don't want to

have -- | think that the concern was that there mght, at
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sone point, be -- it mght be having bus stops in front of
retail mght be a disinhibiting factor, and that at that
point, you'd say we don't want them in front of a pizza
pl ace, or we don't want themin front of a bank.

MR D. SMTH W' ve agreed to work to include
t hose.

MR LITSKY: G eat, because that is atransit hub.
We're right on top of the Metro. | do have a question, as
wel |, about retail in the west building. Again, | think it
was asked before about the two-story retail. There's going
to be retail beyond the retail that waps around on that
corner that's two story. There's retail then going further
over west, correct?

MR. SWATOCHA: Yes, correct.

MR, LITSKY: Thank you. Also --

MR, SWATOCHA: Sorry, at the ground fl oor.

MR, LITSKY: At the ground floor, yes. That's
what | neant. The proposed plan elimnates the setback on

t he south facades on the upper portions of the buildings, or
it seens to, the way | read them Does the proposed setback
-- what's the proposed setback on the upper floors?
MR, SWATOCHA: Can you clarify what you're --
MS. SHI KER: The setback on the ground fl oor,
which was agreed to in the first-stage PUD, which was to

mai ntain the sidewal k width, is mai ntai ned. There was never
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di scussion in the first-stage PUD that, at a certain point,
you coul dn't conme back out to the property line. Wat he's
asking is at what -- how far does that cantilever above --
does it reach the property line, or is it behind the property
i ne?

MR SW ATOCHA: On the west building, 425, that
setback is maintained up to the second floor, then at the
second floor, the building cones out to the property I|ine.
At the ground floor, the building is set back approximately
three feet, based on that 18.75-foot setback fromthe curb
line on M Street.

MR LITSKY: So the cantilever is what, then?

MR, SW ATOCHA: Three feet. On the east buil di ng,
that setback is actually -- is maintained, at the east side
of the building -- let nme see if | can find a better imge
for you. The setback is maintained for 75 percent of the
residential tower that fronts onto M Street. It's only at
the corner of Mand 4th where the bay -- that gl ass bay does
extend to and, as a bay, beyond the property |ine.

MR, LITSKY: Thank you for clarifying that. On
the Gorove/ Sl ade report, it states that the Applicant wil
obtain and evaluate detailed crash data from DDOT for the
I ntersection of 4th and M Street Sout hwest.

The crash data will be reviewed to determ ne the

patterns at the intersection and if there are geonetric or
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operational adjustnents that nay benefit the intersection.
This plan, this analysis is going to be done after zoning
approves? What happens if we have to nmake adj ustnents based
upon the results of any study that happens with taking a | ook

at the intersection of 4th and M

MR, VANPELT: | think we've | ooked at it. | think
that if there's any changes that can be done within -- the
study wll look at if there's any changes that can be done
within the existing curb |ine. If there is anything that

woul d need to be done to adjust the intersection, there is
a curb extension on the west-hand side that, | think, is the
only thing that probably would be in play, potentially.

That's not sonething that the devel opnent plans
really have an inpact on that, whether that curb extension
stays or it goes. Those are the two alternatives that we
know we're | ooking at in a safety study is one, | ook at what
we can do within the existing curb to curb, and then what is
the potential if we adjust that curb extension on the west
si de.

MR, LITSKY: One of the things that we have had
under discussion at the ANC and in the community for quite
some tine, pro and con, is extending left turns going toward
t he baseball stadium that is heading south down 4th Street
and making a left heading eastward. This is something

apparently, that you will want to include in your proposal.
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In doing so -- and we' ve had di scussions with you on this --
do you feel, CGorove/ Slade, that we're going to have to add
a third lane heading south to ensure that we don't have a
conti nuous backup waiting for people to make | eft-hand turns?

MR, VANPELT: | think that's sonething that we are
going to further evaluate, and | think we expect the ANC to
be part of that as we evaluate what is the appropriate way
to -- DDOT has said, in the staff report, they want to see
that |eft-hand turn re-established. W think, from a
capacity standpoint, we can certainly do that.

Maybe we'l|l do that wthin the existing
configuration, but then we do need to carefully | ook further
at the queuing. WII there be any queui ng i ssues back to our
intersectionwiththe private drives? W'IlI| further eval uate
that, and we expect that the ANC and the conmunity wll be
part of that scoping, as we go forward with the scoping and
establish the paraneters for the study and what we'll be
| ooki ng at.

MR, LI TSKY: How long do you antici pate the study
is going to take?

MR.  VANPELT: A study like this is probably
something that -- we certainly want to have the community
di al og, and al so engage wi th DDOT, as we set up the scope and
set up the alternatives that we're going to eval uate. I

think that this is a study that probably can be done within
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a couple nonths. | think the questionis the timng for when
we would initiate the study, but this is a study that's
probably a two, to nmaybe three-nonth effort, just terns of

MR LITSKY: This has been a project that's been
underway for quite sone tinme. This is a goal, apparently,
that the Applicant has had, also, for quite sone tinme. You
at Gorove/ Sl ade had prepared this goi nhg back how many nont hs,
prepared your traffic anal ysis? You had been the consultant
for themon transportation and traffic going back how | ong?

MR. VANPELT: Yes, we've been working with the
Applicant for quite sone time. The analysis that we did in
the report shows that we could put the left turn back in from
a capacity standpoint, wthout w dening the cartway, and
we're showi ng that we could achi eve acceptabl e operati ons.

| think one of the main things that we heard was safety

concerns.
MR. LITSKY: From whonf?
MR. VANPELT: W heard safety concerns fromthe
community. | think that one of the things that we're a bit

limted, in terns of the crash data that we're able to get
easily from DDOT, we do |look at that in our studies, but to
do the type of safety study we're tal king about now, what we
want to do is do a deeper dive and work with DDOT to get

better crash data, better crash reports, so we can anal yze
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that and understand -- get a better understandi ng of what's
actually happening at that intersection, from a safety
st andpoi nt.

MR LITSKY: Are you aware that -- |I'll just give
you anecdotal information now -- that during the tine that
private street had been open and that intersection had been
recalibrated wth tines and |ights and everything el se, that
we' ve had three pedestrian hits at that intersection and one

person killed? Are you aware of that?

MR, VANPELT: 1've heard about that, yes.

MR. LI TSKY: Ckay. | just want to make sure
that's included. Again, we're tal king about safety. | just
want to make sure that -- it does seemto ne that since these

i deas had been brought up before, that since you had worked
as a consultant for the Applicant for along tine, that this
safety data shoul d have been anal yzed al r eady.

We shoul d not have to wait until after the Zoning
Commi ssion acts on this to make sure that we're dealing with
a safe intersection with what you guys plan to build. What
we don't want to do, and perhaps you can satisfy the concern,
is to have those two buildings approved, and then realize
we've got to widen the street. W have to reconfigure the
sidewal k. W're not going to be able to do the ground-fl oor
retail and havi ng peopl e eati ng hotdogs on the corner because

we' ve got to do sonething else, but, well, zoning' s already
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done it. So, how do you work with that?

MR. VANPELT: | think that we've | ooked at it, and
| think we actually have had this conversation w th DDOT.
| think we have a sufficient right of way within what the
project will be doing that we could inplenent an additi onal
|l ane if that is what is necessary.

MR, LI TSKY: So you advise that the Comm ssion

could act on this w thout having undergone the safety --

MR VANPELT: | think that there's existing
conditions -- there's existing issues at this intersection
today, regardless of what this project -- whether this

project goes forward or does not go forward. \Wile there
will be sonme additional traffic that's added to the network
with these projects, there's an existing need, existing
concerns that are there.

| don't see how this project is -- it's an
exi sting issue. VWhat we have now is a benefit, wth this
project and the study that has been proffered, to really put
the spotlight onit, figure out how we address this existing
i ssue, and --

MR, LITSKY: Existing safety issue.

MR.  VANPELT: Exi sting safety, and now the
i ntroduction of the left turn, so those two things at the
i ntersecti on.

MR, LI TSKY: Exactly. W have an existing issue,
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and now we are exacerbating that existing issue wth the
I npl enmentation of aleft turn. Wat kind of analysis did you
do, in your traffic report, that would indicate how the
calibration of the traffic Ilights would need to be
reconfigured, based upon putting a left turn at that corner?

MR, VANPELT: | think what we did is we | ooked at
It froma capacity standpoint. W |ooked at how we put the
additional phasing in there. D d we split phase it?

PARTI Cl PANT: No, we did not. That's one of the
things that we're going to | ook at.

CHAl RMAN HOOD: Excuse ne. You all can tal k, or
she can conme to the mc, or however you want to do it, but
we've got to make sure it's on the record.

MR. VANPELT: What we didis we re-introduced t hat
| eft-hand turn. One of the things that we -- what we'll
likely need to do is potentially split phase. That neans
that each side, the north and south, may have to go at
separate tinmes, to allow the future left-hand turn to be
added to that intersection. Wen we did the analysis, we
| ooked at it a couple different ways to deternmi ne that there
is the capacity in the intersection to allow that |eft-hand
turn to conme back.

MR. LI TSKY: Are you aware how many hours DDOT has
spent at that corner trying to adjust the traffic lights to

enabl e safe pedestrian passage north and south across M
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Street?

MR, VANPELT: | amnot aware of all the time DDOT
has spent, no.

MR LI TSKY: | think we can get you that
information. Are you aware that there is sonebody at DDOT
that deals with nothing but the calibration of traffic
| i ghts?

MR, VANPELT: Yes. | think you can talk to DDOT,
but | believe DDOT has interacted with that person.

MR. LI TSKY: So you feel that by putting the
| eft-hand turn back in, not only do you expect that it's
going to be safe, but you anticipate that it's not going to
i npact the timng of the ability of people to get back and

forth across M Street?

MR,  VANPELT: | did not say that | think it's
going to be safe. | think what | -- | don't want you to
msinterpret. | think that there's capacity, that it can be

done. Actually, our report |ooked at it either keeping it
as it is, or introducing that |eft-hand turn. DDOT is the
one who's insisting that the | eft-hand turn be | ooked at and
t hat we should re-introduce that |eft-hand turn.

That is why we proffered the study to | ook at that
further, toreally look at the viability of introducing that
| eft-hand turn, and then what other -- what safety

consi derati ons do we need to further take i nto consi derati on.
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What ot her sort of signing, marking, geonetric adjustnents
m ght be needed, both for the safety and for the | eft-hand
turn.

MR. LI TSKY: When we re-opened that 4th Street
goi ng through -- because there was Waterside Mall, and it was
a clot in the mddle of the neighborhood. Wen 4th Street
was re-opened, we established a legal crossing fromthe west
side of 4th Street across M It is nmy understandi ng that
were we to add a | eft-hand turn, we would have to elimnate
that crossing, which neans that 5,000 people are going to
have to then zig-zag their way across the street. Do you
bel i eve that woul d be so, as well?

MR, VANPELT: |It's a possibility, but that is one
of the things that we're going to have to study further and
understand exactly what is the right way to treat this. It's
not something that Gorove/ Slade is going to do al one. That
is sonething that is going to require close coordination, as
we study this, with DDOT, and also with the commnity.

MR LITSKY: So thenit's nore inportant for your
project to get a left-hand turn for vehicles than to all ow
saf e pedestrian passage across the street?

MR, VANPELT: No, that's not what |'m sayi ng.

MR, LITSKY: Just want to check. 1'Il take that
back. | do have a question about pedestrian passage,
additionally. | do knowthat you had only -- you only really
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want to deal with the i nmedi ate confines of what's happeni ng
right next to +the project when vyou're doing your
transportation anal ysis. Are you aware of the nunber of
pedestrians that we anticipate are going to be headi ng south
across that street on their way to the soccer stadi um when
It opens in July?

MR, VANPELT: Yes. | think that's part of the
reason why we wanted to nmke sure that the pedestrian
accommpdations are there and are adequate to be able to
accommpdat e those sorts of traffic |oads, yes.

MR. LI TSKY: But that hasn't been anal yzed so far?

MR.  VANPELT: W did not |ook at an event day
condition in our analysis. | think that's -- what we | ook
at are typi cal weekday condi ti ons when we do an i npact st udy.

MR, LITSKY: Those are the only questions |I have
for you. | do have a couple of nore questions, however. No,
that's it. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOCD: Thank you. Wat's the nane of the
party in opposition?

PARTI Cl PANT: Waterfront Tower.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Waterfront Tower. | started to
say Waterfront Tower. Waterfront Tower, you have any
Cross-exam nati on? I'"'m sorry; | had your name witten

somewhere up here. M. Bouganim yes. Conm ssioner Shapiro

nmust have noved ny paperwork. 1'mgood at bl ami ng everybody.
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Do you have any cross-exam nation of anything that you've
heard, any questions |ike you heard Conm ssi oner Litsky just
ask, any questions. Cone identify yourself.

M5. BOUGANIM 'l just --

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Sure. ldentify yourself, and you
can ask your -- have a seat. Make yourself confortable
I dentify yourself, and you can ask your questions.

M5. BOUGANIM My nane is Hara Bouganim |'mthe
vice president of the condo right now. The one question |
had for everyone was | received all the materials and went
very carefully over the newPUD. It was done in great haste.

When | went over it, sonme draw ngs reflected
agreenents that we had had, sonme didn't. For instance, there
was an overhang which was omtted on the east side of the
building. It was gone in one drawing, and it was there in
sonmet hing else. There were other simlar things. It's no
use going over all of them Are we stuck with these draw ngs
the way they are? Because they're contradictory.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay, sone of that you can testify
to. The rest of it, you can ask --

M5. SHHKER: |I'msorry; | didn't hear. |If she'd
like to ask the architect a question if there's a specific
change to a plan page, we'll be happy to answer. Certainly,
our intent was to keep our agreenents, but if there's

speci fic confusion on certain pages, | think a question woul d
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be appropriate.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Ms. Bouganim right? ['"'m
practicing your nanme, too, on the slick side. Anyway, M.
Bouganim | think your questionis that the -- it seens |ike
the drawi ngs had changed. |Is that it?

M5. BOUGANIM There were changes nade, and they
tried to update them all, but sone got updated and sone
didn't.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: That's your question; howcone al
of them weren't updated?

MR, SWATOCHA: |'mnot aware of any that have not
been updat ed. If there are sone that weren't, it was not
intentional. If you --

M5. BOUGANIM It neans that we can't understand
what is truly happening if we don't have consistent picture
in the PUD. WIl the PUD be nodified, the draw ngs be
nodi fied, or the agreenents with us be listed, so that we
have agreenent on both sides?

CHAI RMAN  HOCQD: Let's talk about your thing.
Maybe if you can identify -- | don't know how far we'll get
t oni ght .

M5. BOUGANIM | can't do it tonight. It would
t ake half an hour.

CHAI RMAN  HOCD: '"'m not asking you to do it

tonight. That way, we can nake sure that you have a true
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representation of what's actually being represented there.

Any ot her cross-exam ne questions?

M5. BOUGANIM | don't have other questions, but
Dr. Marriott, | think, does.
CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Typically, what we do --

hopefully, Ms. Shiker, you don't have a problem because |
think this may be the first tinme. |Is this your first tine?
(No audi bl e response.)

CHAI RMVAN  HOQOD: Typically, one person asks the

gquesti ons.

M5. BOUGANI M | didn't know that. He has
guesti ons.

CHAI RMAN  HOQOD: |  know. "Il tell you -- I'm
going to put this on record -- |I've gotten in trouble before

because | have different people in the opposition party cone
up, but I'masking Ms. Shiker, aml going to get in trouble?

M5. SHIKER Let's listen to the questions. In
the fullness of information, we're trying to get informtion
out there. W' re happy to answer sonme questions, dependi ng
on the scope.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ms. Bouganim if you can stay at
the table, since you're the noted the person that's
representing -- whoever else is comng up now, you two are
going to be the only two that's going to ask questions in

this case, so figure out who --
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M5. BOUGANIM  Qur presentation, though, is --

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: The presentation's different.

This is just cross-exam nation.

M5,  GOCDI NG Hel | o, thank you. "' m Lei gha
Goodi ng, the president of Waterfront Tower. | have a | ot of
gquestions here. "Il keep them m ni mal. "Il prioritize
here. First, will you include Waterfront Tower in all area

managenent plans and pl anni ng novi ng forward?

MR D. SMTH. Wth respect to those -- wth the
signage and things of that nature, especially on the
north/south drive in the plaza, we will definitely have you
with the planning group, with the ANC, and any relevant
transportation/traffic issues with respect to that, vyes.
QO her issues are within the body of the Waterfront Station

property owners, but where it does involve Waterfront Tower,

yes.

M5. GOODING | would just specify on the private
| ane, fromnorth to south and east to west, as well, we'd
like to knowif you would be willing to continue to neet with

us as you refine all the details in the PUD noving forward
and anyt hing that changes after today? W want to make sure
that we don't have to hunt you down agai n.

MR D. SMTH Once we hear that there is an
i ssue, we will work with you to resol ve those i ssues and neet

Wi th you.
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(Si nmul t aneous speaki ng.)

M5. SHHKER | wll also say, as a party to the
case, you wll receive correspondence to your designated
representative for anything that happens with the PUD and t he
Zoni ng Conm ssi on.

V5. GOODI NG W just want to continue
conversation, as well, and not just these docunents, but
thank you. The orientation to M Street changes. The new U
shape that's facing M Street and sone of the other changes
bet ween your first PUD and your second PUD, can you explain
the difference in how you involved Waterfront Tower versus
Ti ber Island versus Carrol |l sburg versus any ot her community
groups or inpacted parties?

MR D. SMTH  Back in 2007, when we were wor ki ng
on the Stage 1 PUD for the whole site, we were inforned that
there were issues with providing view corridors with Tiber
I sland. At that point, we net with themand di scussed t hose
| ssues.

Looki ng at the overall issues and working with the
Zoni ng Commi ssion and the ANC, we noved the massing of the
tower above the second floor on the east side of those
buil dings in by an additional 45 feet fromthe 35 -- there's
a 30-foot setback that allows for the alley or private drive.
We've set it back, after those di scussions, another 45 feet

and addressed those issues at that tine. At that tine,
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Waterfront Towers was not a condom nium \Wen we heard t hat
there was an issue, we net with the party and resol ved t hose
| ssues.

M5. GOCDI NG  You said this was during 2010?

MR D. SMTH No, | did not.

M5. GOODING I|I'msorry. | wanted to ask you to
repeat the year.

MR D. SMTH. | said 2007. That happened bet ween
2006- 2007.

M5. GOODI NG So there was no attenpt to reach out
to Waterfront Tower once they did exist? Because that was
over 11 years ago. There was a |lot of time between now and
t hen.

MS. SHI KER: "Il say objection. That's a
statenent, not a question. Il will also point out that
there's clearly been notice provided, in accordance with all
of the regulations, starting in October of 2016, so | do
think there has been notice of what we've been doing, and
t here has been outreach, in terns of what's required in the
zoni ng regul ati ons.

M5. GOODI NG Sur e. | recogni ze maybe what's
required, the letters canme, which | haven't seen, to this
day, but I'll keep to ny question. I'msorry. |'mtrying
to separate the testinony fromthe questions. WII| there be

-- it was really unclear to ne, |ooking at the plans -- and
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| know we tal ked about this a bit at the |ast ANC neeting,
but will there be any change to the current |ocation of the
curb on the west side of your eastern private drive?

Is that clear? Do you want to pull up a picture?
Actually, | can point to it on this picture. That curb that
Is sticking out fromthe little Iine of greenery underneath
t hose wi ndows, is that the sane | ocation of the curb today,
or is that going to nove?

MR D. SMTH W will | ook at the exact |ocation
of the curb and let you know where the new curb will be, in
reference to where it is today.

M5. GOCDI NG  Ckay, because the other part of ny
guestion is we're trying to identify if you shrunk the size
of this road that we're very, very concerned wth. It's
al ready highly congested. W understand that we've had sone
conversati ons about addi ng si dewal ks and stuff, but has that
road al so shrunk?

MR. SW ATCCHA: We have not shrunk the setback of

the building fromthe property line.

M5. GOODI NG |"'m sorry; I'mtrying to ask a
different question. |[|'mtalking about the setback not from
the property Iine. | know your property line is on the

property where Bernsteinis currently perform ng construction
activities. | knowthat's where your property lineis. 1'm

tal ki ng about the curb that is right outside of those wi ndows
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right there.

If that is still in the sanme place, then | know
that our street has not gotten nore narrow. But if that
noves, which | thought you told ne it was going to possibly
nove 18 inches a few weeks ago, so | was hoping you woul d
reconsi der. That's where |I'm going with this. Did you
reconsi der noving that 18 inches, or was it not noved 18
I nches? There m ght have been sone confusi on.

MR D. SMTH: | don't recall the 18 inches and

from which point you're tal king about. W have to | ook at

that, and we'll tell you where we are with the size of the
road and fromwhere it's setback.

M5. GOCDI NG  Ckay, do you know the wi dth of the
final road?

MR, SW ATOCHA:  Yes.

M5. GOODING |'msorry; what is the width of the
final road, | guess, is my question?

MR. SWATOCHA: The cartway is 22 feet curb to
cur b.

M5. GOODI NG  Ckay, because today it's measured
23 feet, curb to curb. Could that possibly be a m stake?
Is it going to stay the same, at 23, or definitely going down
to 22?

MR D. SMTH. |I'mnot sure if the position of the
curb on the east side, relative to the final buil dout of 301,
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IS in the correct position.

M5. GOODING But it's not going to nove because

they're done. So you're saying the final should be 22.
Ri ght now, it's 23, so we'll have to |l earn nore about that.
As well, the distance fromwall to wall, from375 to 301 M

do you know t hat di nension?

MR. SWATOCCHA: Not at the nonent.

M5. GOODING |Is that a dinension that you could
provide to ne?

MR, SW ATOCHA:  Yes.

M5. GOODI NG  Ckay, thank you.

M5. SHI KER: W know the dinmension from our
property line to our building.

M5. GOODI NG Do you know t he di nensi on fromyour
property line to the building that's built up against your
property line? |s the 301 Mbuilding on your property line,
or is there an offset there?

MR. SWATOCHA: There is an offset.

M5. GOODING There is an offset, so it's going
to be nore. | won't ask all of these. The pedestrian study,
| was wondering how you considered three |arge residential
bui |l di ngs that are currently under construction and openi ng
within the next few nonths, that are all |ocated within one
block, as well as the Elliott, which |I know you have

devel oped and desi gned yoursel f, that recently opened up this
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year.

How di d you include -- you nentioned a | ot about
-- the foot traffic was the highest during tinmes when
busi ness -- people comng here to work were going to be
wal ki ng around, but we have three buil di ngs opening up within
a bl ock, and then the fourth on Elliott that just opened up.
It's going to bring a ot nore residential foot traffic in.
["'minterested to know how that was included in your study.

MR VANPELT: Qur study |ooked at existing
patterns. It | ooked at existing pedestrian traffic out
there. The point is just to show what happens with office
use, as opposed to what we woul d anti ci pate woul d happen with
resi dential use.

M5. GOODI NG It was that study that does not
consider the <current status of the Wterfront Tower
nei ghbor hood right there. Ws that a driving factor in your
decision to convert fromoffice toresidential, or were there
other driving factors that were nore inportant?

MR D. SMTH That was a consi deration, but the
driving factors were that we've been trying to |ease the
space for the last ten years. W have a study that was done
on the office market. W have al so been trying, ourselves,
to | ease those two buildings as office, have not been able
to, knowi ng that there's been, chronically, high vacancy in

Sout hwest and the District, as a whole. There's places for
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folks to go, for businesses to go, at a cheaper cost than it
would be trying to get a new building to be built. That,
| think, was a |little support in our decision to say that
what we're doing with residential traffic would be in excess
of what would be done in the evenings and on the weekends
with office buildings.

M5.  GOODI NG Ckay. "Il add this one | ast
gquestion. W have expressed concern, once we got a copy of
the PUD and started looking in it and started our
conversations in the past few nonths -- expressed sone
concerns over the inaccuracies of the i mages used i n your PUD
that actually don't enphasize the reality of our situation
as a l|and-locked building conpletely, wth only one
i ngress/ egress on your private drive. It nakes it appear as
t hough - -

M5. SHI KER: (bjection. Do you have a question?

M5. GOODING Yes. M question is --

CHAI RMAN  HOQOD: Actually, | understand -- |
actually want to hear this question, but let's try to get to
t he questi on.

M5. GOODI NG Ckay. | was wondering if you could
explain why you didn't change it after we pointed out the
I naccuraci es and our concerns about it?

MR,  SW ATOCHA: |"'m not sure specifically what

exhibit you are referring to, but we did, for the nost recent
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subm ssion, revise all of the plan diagrans to show the
actual configuration of the notor court and the access to
Waterfront Towers.

M5. GOODING It's Page 2, if you want to try to
pul | it up.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD: Let's put Page 2 up, try to see
I f we can get this answered.

MR SW ATOCHA: O the supplenental prehearing
subm ssi on?

M5. GOODING O the PUD that --

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Was it the prehearing?

M5, GOODI NG I'"'m sorry; |I'm not sure if |
understand the difference. The prehearing? Yes, that's the
docunent. There's a couple different versions of it. That
one, you can't see the area as well that |'m pointing out.
Is it appropriate for me to cone over and point to the i mage,
as long as |I'"'mon the m crophone?

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Just show t hem what page you're
tal ki ng about, and then you conme back to the m crophone.
That's sufficient.

M5. GOODI NG  Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  You want to be on the mc.

M5. GOODI NG  Thank you. Sorry, the areas that
"' m concerned about, that are m sleading, are specifically

t hese roads right here that DDOT did not approve, as well as
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CHAI RVAN HOOD: Here's another thing. W need to
try to find out howto use that nouse because we need to see
that. Showing her is fine, but --

M5. SH KER: | can actually answer this question.
This is a picture fromthe 2007 approved PUD. It is not a
proposed picture, so it cannot be corrected. It was what was
anticipated for the developnent in 2007. The PUD t hat
al | oned additional devel opnent and closed off the existing
parking area in front of Waterfront Tower was approved by the
Zoni ng Conmi ssion in 2014.

It's Case 12-14, | believe, is the case nunber.
Therefore, this picture is sinply an approved page fromthe
first-stage PUD and it can't be updated because it was what
was approved. Then it's covered up in this section because
it is not necessarily what actually was approved by the
Zoni ng Conmi ssion four or five years |l ater for the Waterfront
Tower redevel opnent.

M5. GOODI NG That wasn't the response we got when
we initially brought up our concern because it portrays a
situation at Waterfront Tower that's not true. | don't even
know if we'd be at this table if that were all true,
actual ly. W didn't want the Comm ssion to have that
perception, which is why we brought it up.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: kay. Just explain that when you
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get ready to do your presentation.

M5. GOCDI NG  Okay, thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: What's your nane, again?

M5. GOCDING |'m Lei gha Goodi ng.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay, President Gooding. Are you
going to be part of the presentation?

M5. GOODI NG Yes, as well.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Do you have any nore questions?

M5. GOODING No, | will end it there. Thank you
for the tine.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay, thank you all.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: M. Chair, before M.
Goodi ng | eaves, | wonder, can you pull up G vil Drawi ng C 8?

MR, SWATOCHA: Yes, in one second. G ve nme one
nonment to open the pre-hearing subm ssion.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: It's going to be hard to
see, unless you can blow it up a bit. The road that's next
to the harbor, it shows a neasurenent of 31'7" at the top,
just above the drive. The arrows show 31' 7". Then down
below, it shows a sidewal k at 6' 6", and then it shows 22 feet

for the drive, but it goes from curb to curb, which would

make it 38 6", but there's a little parkway over on the one
side. | wonder if you guys can -- you mght need to redo
that drawing and clarify di nensions on there.

M5. SHHKER. | knowthat there is a portion of the

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

102
Waterfront Tower, it's called the Town Center East PUD,

extends on to the private property of Waterfront Station, so
that mght be tricking up what the nunbers are, but Ryan
Brannan, our civil engineer, is here, sol'mgoing to let him
answer the question.

MR. BRANNAN. Good evening. For the record, Ryan
Brannan, from Bowrman Consulting DC, civil engineer for the
project. The dinensions are -- the 31.7 is the dinension
fromthe property line to the facade. The 22 feet is the
di mension of the cartway, and the 6 and a half feet is the
di mension of the sidewalk that is closest to the building.
The | eftover, the remainder, is the portion of the sidewal k
adj acent to the site that is encroaching on the property.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. M only question
is 31.7 is fromproperty line to the wall or whatever. But
if | add the string down below, |'ve got 38.6 -- | nean 28. 6.
| would think we just m ght need better, clearer dinensioning
of exactly what's included. | think that m ght answer sone
of her questions. Maybe you need to blowit up and just show
sone of these --

MR. BRANNAN: That remai nder is the sidewal k t hat

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: That's the sidewal k?
MR. BRANNAN: Yes, it's two and change.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  You coul d nmaybe explain
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-- | think that m ght answer sone of her questions and j ust
clarify sonme of the issues that are out there.

M5. SH KER: W can provide a bl owup of that and
have all three of the strings of nunbers, which equals the
31. 7.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: | think she's confused by
sone of the dinensions. | think looking at this, | can
under stand what he's saying, but |I think it woul d nake sense
I f you could maybe add a few nore dinensions in there and
open up that string a bit.

MR. BRANNAN: Absolutely, we can add the third
di mension for that existing sidewal k portion.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: I'mjust trying to nake
it clear to everybody what's goi ng on.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: kay, any further questions from
your party?

M5. GOODING Can | ask one nore?

CHAI RMVAN HOOD:  Sur e.

V5. GOODI NG "' m wonderi ng does your building
i mpact our rooftop sunlight potential? Because we're
concerned that it nmay have some inpact on our ability to
pursue solar panels, like you guys are interested in
pur sui ng. W already know the inpact from the 301 M
buil ding, but it |looked like, frommy |imted understanding

of how to interpret a sunlight study, that there m ght be
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additional inpact, that we may no | onger be able to pursue
sol ar panel s.

MR SWATOCHA: |'Il try to --

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Can you bring up -- | ooki ng
at the shadow study to provide the answer to that?

MR SW ATOCHA: One nonent, please. The shadow
study that was perfornmed in response to concerns about the
| npacts of shadows does not show any inpact on the roof in
t he summer nont hs, any i npact on the roof i n March/ Sept enber.

There is a shadow cast from the nmassing on the
sout h edge of the roof in March/ Septenber, |ater in the day,
but that shadow inpact is equivalent to the shadow i npact
t hat woul d have cone fromthe approved massi ng of the office
bui | di ng.

M5. GOODI NG Ckay. The community center, the
guestion about that; howis this conmunity center better or
not duplicative with the public spaces that do or will exi st
in all of our churches, our library, our recreation center,
and t he Sout heast Conmunity Center, which are all within one
mle? W're trying to understand what unique value this
brings to us that we don't already have in other places.

MR D. SMTH: In working with the ANC, we
| ear ned/ understood this is a top priority for them W did
talk about it in our initial discussions about spaces around

in the library and churches and whatnot, but spaces |arge
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enough to be able to satisfy their needs -- at the tine they
needed t hose uses, it was a concern where they were i n charge
and able to have those events in those spaces at the
comunity's discretion and not be behol den to one center or
use of space in a lot of different areas wthin the
comunity. But we were also told that there are none that

are | arge enough to neet their needs on a consistent basis.

M5. GOODI NG Just a clarifying question. You
said that they're |arger than the existing places. | think
| understand. But they're not | arge enough -- question. Are

they large enough or able to accommpbdate the types of
activities that our community has |loudly expressed that we
real |y appreciate and enj oy, such as the market pl aces and t he
nusi ¢ outside and the DJs and the event activities, |ike the
Friday night market that we all -- have nmade such a great,
vi brant town center that's about to di sappear?

MR D. SM TH: Those spaces with the community
center are internal spaces. Just as a note, the spaces on
t he out si de that you were di scussi ng were done i n conj unction
with the ANCto activate the spaces outside during the tines
t hat the buil di ngs that were proposed, at one point, were not
del i ver ed.

Just so that those would not be enpty lots and
enpty pieces of grass, we activated those spaces, bringing

the farmers' market onto our site, bringing the Southwest
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Ni ghts. But we worked to do that. The idea and the intent
Is that working with conmmunity groups, that can be done on
ot her public spaces, at Metro Plaza, Private Drive, the duck
pond, other parks, parks that are proximate to the project,
the two pocket parks on the north side of the project. But
there are other public spaces for those events. This was an
I nterimuse.

M5, GOCDI NG Thank you, by the way, for that
interimuse. W all have really enjoyed it.

MR D. SMTH. You're wel cone.

M5. GOODING M |ast one's very sinple. Wy not
extend the use of those nice red pavers that you have in the
north -- the east to west side of the private lane to the
north and south side of the private |ane once construction
is over? They look really nice, and |I'm wondering why not
extend that exact pattern for consistency?

MR,  SW ATOCHA: We have shown, in the current
| andscape plans, extending the diagonal paving, which is
actual |y a stai ned concrete paving, wappi ng that around onto
t hose north/ south drives which access the plazas on the north
si de.

M5. GOODI NG Yes, sorry, you had a great picture
that showed it. They're different. Wat page is this, Hara?
Page L-2A, if you have that. They're just conpletely

different. They don't | ook as nice as the other ones, so
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there's this breakup of the consistency of the private drive
that | ooks different.

M5.  RODRI GUEZ: Trini Rodriguez again. The
Intentionis to extend the pattern. W had left the red only
because the red is actually the one that wears out nore and
it's nore maintenance issue, but there is not a problem
It's the sane pattern; we just had the different grays.

It was sort of |like a gradient, going fromthe
red, which was the area that was nore pedestrian and was
intended to be on the east/west, and then on the two
north/south, we had just the two grays. | think you can see,
in the graphic here, if you can point to that, it's the same
pattern with the grays. | don't think there's a problemon
introducing the red, if that was a desire.

MR D. SMTH We will look into it.

M5. GOODI NG Ckay, thanks, we appreciate the
consi stency and consistent treatnent of the face of
Waterfront Tower, as with the face of other devel oper-owned
bui | di ngs, such as the Leo, so thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: (kay, thank you very nmuch. Let's
take a fewnmnutes and let's try to figure this out. W have
guite a bit. Let nme just see, a show of hands, all those who
came tonight to testify. You can raise your hand. It's not
really that many. Wat | want to try to do, coll eagues, with

everyone's help, is to go to the Ofice of Planning, the
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District Departnent of Transportation, and the ANC report.

We'll probably cut it at that because here's
what's happening. | think Metro closes nowat 11:15. | try
not to go too late, anyway. W' re probably going to have to
| ook at another date. | have two prospective dates. | could
trytofinishit, but every tinel try that, it doesn't work.
W have two dates, May 10th and May 21st. Everybody fine
with either one of those dates up here?

PARTI CI PANT: What's the date?

CHAI RMAN HOOD: The dates are May 10th -- let's
try the 10th. W'IIl get it over with.

PARTI Cl PANT: | want to get it over with tonight.

CHAI RMAN HOQOD: Yes, that would be nice, but |
don't think so -- or May 21st. | don't want to spend an hour
on this because then we' Il really be back on the 10th and t he
21st. That's fine with everybody up here. Let ne ask the
Applicant and the ANC and the party in opposition. W're
shooting for May 10th first. Let's try that.

M5. GOODI NG Can | consult wth our expert

W t ness before --

CHAI RMAN HOOD: GCh, I'msorry --

M5. GOODING I'msorry; 1'lIl go --

CHAI RMAN HOOD: (Okay. Wat's going to happen is
we might even get to the ANC tonight. So yes, he can cone
up, and let's see if we can accommodat e your schedul e, since
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you're a paid expert.

MR MARRI OTT: Good evening. |'m Dan Marriott.
' m the consultant advising Waterfront Tower. | guess ny
gquestion is -- because we were prepared, tonight, to make our

presentation to get our ideas across and hopefully get our
t hought s and concerns in front of the Conm ssion about things
goi ng forward. W pushed to be available for this tinme. |
can be available next nonth. |'"'m actually teaching in
Pennsyl vania right now, so | had to travel back tonight for
this neeting.

| want to ensure that if we delay this, is that
going to cause us any delay in terns of what we were hoping
to initiate a dialogue to l|ook at sone potential
opportunities for this process or begin noving forward
anot her nmonth worth of devel opnent that we're going to be

further behind after already entering this process |ate?

CHAI RMAN HOCD:  If | could tell you that -- al
I"'mtrying to do is get back in here May 10th. [I'mtrying
to finish the hearing. | can't predict the future. | never
know what's going to happen. | don't like doing it because
like right now, | would like to finish tonight, as ny
col l eagues and | have just tal ked about. But if | do that

and we go to 1:00 or 2:00 in the norning, that's not being
fair to fol ks who have to get home by public transportation

or however they get honme. Instead of us doing this, let's
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go with May 10th, and let's see how far we can get it. |If
| can at | east get through the ANC and cross-exam nation, it
depends on the questions that are bei ng asked.

| can't predict how many questions sonebody's
going to cross-examne. | can't predict how nany questions
we're going to cross-exam ne DDOT or the Ofice of Planning.
| may be going for a stretch even tal king about getting to
the ANC, so May 10th.

M5. GOODING |Is there an opportunity for renote
presentation?

PARTI CI PANT:  No.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Toni ght ?

M5. GOODING | nean on May 10t h.

MR MARRIOTT: [|'Il be here.

CHAI RMAN HOCD:  No, we have a process that we have
to follow W have a process we have to follow  You can
talk to staff if there's sone question and uncertainty.
Let's try to see if we can get it because if not, we'll be
doing ANC on May 10th, then we m ght have to have a third
ni ght . W good? |'m sorry you have to come back from
Pennsyl vani a. Were am 17? Let's go to the Ofice of
Pl anni ng and DDOT.

MR, JESI CK: Thank you, M. Chairman and nenbers
of the Comm ssion. The Ofice of Planning is supportive of

this application. However, in our report, we did |list sone
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itenms that we felt the Applicant could continue to study or
examne, and we've continued our discussion wth the
Appl i cant about those itens.

We appreciate them | ooking at them again. Sone
of them | think, the Comm ssion has di scussed this evening,
one being |Z | won't dwell on that. W also were
interested in nore details about the facade details,
specifically the depths of the w ndow reveals and nulli ons.

The Applicant has begun to provide nore
I nformation on that, and they've indicated to ne they're
going to continue to |ook at that and to provide even nore
detailed drawings, as well as look at if there are
opportunities for increasing the depths of the mullions in
the wi ndows to ensure adequate texture and visual interest
in the facade of the building. The other issue is the
bal conies. W really appreciate the Applicant adding nore
bal coni es since the tinme of setdown. W would like themto
continue to study to see if there are additional
opportunities. As the Conm ssion said, they do make units
nore |livable, so that's inportant for residents. Even with

the public spaces available in the building, we feel that

private open space is inportant, as well. Thank you.

MR. ZI MMERVAN. Good eveni ng. Thank you Chai r man
Hood and Conmmi ssi oners. For the record, mnmy nane is Aaron
Zimrerman with the District Departnent of Transportation.
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W have worked closely and extensively with the Applicant
over the |l ast year on the design of the two sites and private
drives, the design of the public space surroundi ng the sites,
to study and mtigate the PUD s i npacts on the transportati on
network, to inprove connectivity, and to develop an
appropriate and robust transportation devel opnent -- pardon
me, transportation demand managenent pl an.

DDOT is pl eased wth the evol ution of the project
as we've gone through this PUD process and is supportive of
the project in its present form As discussed in M.
VanPelt's presentation earlier, the Applicant has addressed
all of our conments in the DDOT March 26, 2018 staff report
and has agreed to all of the conditions requested by DDOT.
These include the inplenentation of the TDM plan and
conducting a pedestrian safety study that will evaluate the
potential for allowing the return of southbound |eft turns
at the intersection of 4th and M

Wth these conditions agreed to, as docunented in
the Applicant's April 4, 2018 Response to OP and DDOT Reports
Menor andum t hat has been upl oaded to the record, DDOT has no
obj ection to the approval of the first-stage nodification and
second-stage PUD applications. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay, thank you M. Jesick and M.
Zi mrer man. Comnmi ssioners, any questions or conments, either

O fice of Planning or DDOT? Not seeing any, does the
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Appl i cant have any cross of either one?

M5. SH KER: W do not.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay, does the ANC have any cross
of either one?

MR LI TSKY: To DDOT, your report states that the
Applicant's CTR study used sound nethodol ogy; however,
negl ected to include a proposed notor court on the east 375
side private road, as well as inaccurate representations of
driveways north of Waterfront Towers. |t also inaccurately
cal cul ated the nunber of vehicles at the road, even before
construction.

In meetings with Waterfront Towers, the Applicant
and CGorove/ Sl ade all agreed that CTR was inconplete. Wat
actions are you requiring of the Applicant to mitigate these
m st akes?

MR.  ZI MMERMAN: | don't know that | agree with

your assessnent there that there was any nmmjor issues wth

the CTR |"'m not sure what you're referring to with the
Stage 1 PUD and the roads. They did not assune -- | do know
that there are a couple -- | believe there are a coupl e roads

t hat were shown on that, that Ms. Shi ker showed earlier, that
don't currently connect through, but as part of this project,
we did not assunme any traffic would use those roads that
never wound up com ng through the site.

MR. LI TSKY: "Il have additional on that |ater
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on, perhaps, or we can wind up having that done through
anot her party. Also to DDOT, advocating for a change in the
signalization of 4th and M w thout requiring the Applicant
to provide a detailed plan on how DDOT plans to nove traffic
south of MStreet with the addition of the new Audi Field is
very difficult for us to absorb. M question to you is do

you not feel that doing a safety report prior to allow ng

this PUD to nove forward would be putting, literally, the
cart before the horse?

MR ZI MVERVAN:  No, | don't believe so. They've
studied the inpacts of the traffic and the inpacts of the
pedestrian network based on this devel opnmrent. Any changes
that need to happen to the signal or to the roadway is al

within the public right of way and that's stuff that DDOT can
handl e outside of this process. | don't see anything that's
specifically related to this project that would potentially
i npact safety at the intersections, if that's what you're
referring to.

MR, LITSKY: Yes, |I'mactually tal king about the
| eft turn. That's sonething that they want, and that's
sonet hi ng that you seemto enbrace, that you want, also. M
guestion to you i s how are you enbraci ng that w thout having
a proper safety plan in place and a safety study prior to
enbracing it? It hasn't been done.

MR ZI MVERVAN.  That's the entire point of doing
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the pedestrian safety study. W want to nake sure that
there's analysis, that there's an eval uation of the potenti al
to i npact pedestrian safety at this intersection.

There's no decision that's been nade by DDOT to
reinstitute that left turn or to nmake any revisions to the
I nt ersecti on. W're requesting, and the Applicant has
generously agreed to provide, in their public anenities
package, a study that will help DDOT in aiding our decision

on what to do with that intersection in the future.

MR LI TSKY: The Applicant, | believe, in their
testinmony -- | may be conpletely incorrect. 1'd have to | ook
at the record once it's typed up -- had stated that the

reason that they were providing that was sonething that you
had actual |y asked for.

MR ZI MMERMAN.  That is correct. W requested
that the Applicant, as part of the CTR-- the first tinme this
came up, we asked them during the CIR, to do a capacity
analysis, just at a high level, what do you think would
happen? 1s this even a decent idea worth pursuing? W took
a look at their analysis. W did see that there were sone
i nprovenents to intersections, to the traffic flow,
particularly over at 3rd and M

Now, having seen their analysis, we wanted them
to go and do a deeper dive into exactly what the inpacts

woul d be to the pedestrian crosswal ks, for exanple, that you
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expressed concern about. Before any changes happen in the
transportation network, we just want to nmake sure that
everything has been evaluated. That's really the genesis of
t hat study.

MR. LI TSKY: It is. W' ve been | ooking for a
safety study on that intersection going back at |east six
years, when we had the death, and then two people hit over
there. That's sonething that DDOT never did before.

Now we've had to wait for this to be part of a
process the developer is giving our city to provide safety
i nformation to our public. Frankly, | think that stinks.
| would urge -- or do you not think that it woul d behoove the
Departnment of Transportation to do safety studies when
they're required, not sinply when they can be paid for by
sonebody el se?

MR, ZI MVERVAN:  Frankly, what we're doing it as
part of this application because we wanted to make sure t hat
there was a path forward for getting input from the ANC
This is a concern we've been hearing for years, going back
to when the left turn was renoved. W don't want to just go
out and re-establish the left turn.

W don't want to go out and nake nmj or changes to
the signal without this study. W thank the Applicant for
-- at our suggestion, they agreed to do this study, and we

thank them for that. After that study has been conpl et ed,
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we'll be happy to nmake a decision and eval uate everybody's
I nput on that process, including the ANC, including yours.

MR LITSKY: But is it true that DDOT woul d not
have put forward this study had it not been paid for by
sonebody el se?

MR ZIMVERMAN. | can't speak to that. W do --

MR LITSKY: 1'll ask --

MR ZI MVMERVAN. W do studies all over the city
all the time. There may have been hesitancy to look at this
I ntersection because it was our understanding that the ANC
had been pushing all the years to renove the left-turn
novenment and to keep the left-turn novenent out of there.

As part of this, we wanted to make sure that the
ANC had a maj or conponent and a nmajor role in this decision.
W didn't want to keep anybody in the dark. W didn't want
to go off, do a study on our own w thout any input fromthe
ANC or the community.

W just wanted to be open and transparent about
it. That's why this study is com ng out of this application.
Also, it's imediately adjacent to this project, so it seens
| i ke a good timng for doing this.

MR, LITSKY: But you're not picking up the tab;
they are, right?

MR, ZI MMERMAN:  Yes.

MR. LI TSKY: That's a problem not that you're
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paying for it, but that we have to depend upon outside forces
to pay for stuff that our city ought to be doing. That's a
big problem But the Applicant had stated before that they
were in the process of figuring out what to do with WHATA
that blocks traffic on an entire |ane of M Street. \Wat's
DDOT doi ng about this, and what is your suggested sol ution
to renoving that obstacle that's been there for nore than
three years?

MR ZI MVERVAN: That's sonething that we're
continuing to wrk through wwth them and we're going to keep
wor ki ng t hrough, through the public space permtting process,
to see if there is a place on-site that it can be noved. No
deci si ons have been made by DDOT, the Applicant. There's no
agreenent of any kind, at this point in tine. That' s
somet hi ng we' re going to keep eval uati ng as we go t hrough t he
public space permtting process.

MR, LITSKY: Do you feel that this project ought
to go through without an opportunity to place that W/ATA

vault within the project, itself, toget it off of MStreet?

MR ZI MVERVAN: We're going to keep working with
the Applicant on that. I'"'m not going to give you a
definitive answer on that tonight.

MR, LITSKY: So it is DDOT's belief that it is
possi ble that you would allow this obstacle to block an

entire lane of traffic on M Street in front of where this
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project is being built?

MR ZI MVERVAN. We're going to keep coordinating
with the Applicant and WVMATA on a path forward for that.
That's our answer.

MR, LITSKY: Unfortunate. | don't think | have
anot her question for DDOI. To OP -- again, | got this just
before | cane up. You had responses, and DDOT gave responses
today, so | may not have picked them all up and absorbed
t hem

| believe | had heard that -- or read that OP had
suggested that in order to activate retail on the property
that was lax in getting activated, itself, that you proposed
that you would work with themto establish a situation where
t hey woul d be able to put popups there. AmI incorrect in
that, or was that sonething that the Applicant had conme up
Wi t h?

MR JESICK: We were |looking to the Applicant to
come up with an interimretail strategy. | think they've
begun to | ook at that, |ooking at maybe arts and crafts type
uses that <could tenporarily fill spaces that aren't
i mredi ately |l eased. In their subm ssion today, which | know
you probably haven't had a chance to | ook at, they've put
forth sone | anguage. | don't know if it'd be in a form of
a condition of the approval, or just in the order sonewhere,

t hat woul d begin to address that, so we can continue to work
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with them on that | anguage.

MR LI TSKY: Ckay, | appreciate that. I
appreciate that. Thank you. Those are ny only questions,
t hank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Comm ssi oner Litsky, where is the
vaul t ?

MR, LITSKY: Were is the vault?

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Yes, where is it?

MR LITSKY: The vault is on MStreet. If you're
| ooking at M Street, north side of M Street, directly in
front of 375.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: We want to know exactly where it

COMM SSI ONER MAY:  Is it just in the tree space
along M Street?

PARTI CI PANT: It's in the street.

COW SSI ONER MAY: It's in the street, itself?

MR LITSKY: In the street, itself, isn't it?

PARTI Cl PANT:  Yes.

MR. LI TSKY: Yes, in the street, itself. [t's
been there for three years.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Onh, okay. |'ve been gone. No
wonder | hadn't noticed. | think we're trying to -- he's
going to bring it up and show us.

MR. LI TSKY: Again, part of the reason why |
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didn't make it in here to get swornin earlier is because the
traffic fromthe basebal |l stadi umheadi ng west, we're bl ocked

on an entire lane of traffic over there, heading toward the

wharf. It blocked it all the way up, and there was no way
to get through on 4th Street. It was insanity. It's got to
be noved.

MR SWATOCHA: If you can see ny cursor now, it
Is right where that cursor is |ocated.

CHAI RMVAN  HOCQD: Move 1t again. Ckay. | s that
tenporary? It's been there for three years?

MR, LITSKY: | don't know, |'masking DDOT. |It's
in public space. Seens to ne that they ought to have an
answer .

CHAI RVAN HOOD: |Is that where the CV --

MR, LI TSKY: No.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD: It's not?

MR, LITSKY: No, it is --

MR D. SMTH  Wiere the CVS was in the trailer
you' re tal ki ng about ?

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ri ght, where the CVS --

MR LITSKY: But on the street.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Was that due to that?

COMM SSI ONER MAY: | "msorry; it's not -- you keep
saying vault. It's not a vault in the ground. It's a

generator in the street.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A WD

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

122
MR. LI TSKY: Yes.

COW SSI ONER MAY: (Okay. (Google sees it, right?

MR LITSKY: Yes, it does.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  So it's been there a while.

MR LITSKY: Three years, at least, with no input
from WWATA, no input from DDOT. Now we're doing a major
construction over there. W want it noved. It has to nove.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD: Okay, any other questions? Does
Water Towers have any questions of Ofice of Planning and
DDOT? Cone forward.

M5. GOCDI NG  Thank you. |It's for the Ofice of
Pl anni ng. As you know, we've been historically |andnarked
as Town Center East. I'd like to understand how you
consi dered our historical Iandmark status in the approval of
this plan as being proposed? | guess that's ny question.
How has it been considered? It's hard to inagine that this
woul d be done wi thout considering any of that, so I'd |ike
t o understand how.

MR, JESI CK: The nmassing of the building was
establ i shed i n 2007, so ot her than carving out the m ddl e for
the residential use, the massing hasn't really changed. W
felt that the massing was still consistent wth the
first-stage PUD that was approved and, in fact, inproved,
perhaps, froman M Street standpoint. W didn't |look at it

specifically in regards to any surrounding historic
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structures. There are a nunber of historic | andmarks in the
nei ghbor hood, but we felt that this was consistent with the
previ ous approval that the Zoning Comm ssion granted ten
years ago or so.

M5. GOODI NG  Previous approval aside, there has
been -- | guess the question is has there been enough tine
to actually consider the historical significance and | andmark
status of this building and this plan?

MR JESI CK:  Yes.

M5. GOCDI NG  Okay, thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay, let's go to the ANC

MR. LI TSKY: Good eveni ng, Commi ssioners. M/ nane
is Andy Litsky, and |I'm vice chairman of ANC 6D. I'm a
40-year resident and a founding nenber of Tiber |Island
Cooperative Homes, which is located directly across the
street from the 425 building that we're discussing this
eveni ng. Both of the residential conpl exes, Tiber |Island and
Ti ber Island Condos, are in ny single-nmenber district. I
al so was the |ead negotiator for our ANC on the original
Wat erfront PUD and have testified nunerous tinmes before this
Commi ssion on various iterations of this particul ar project.
I"mcomng to you to deliver testinony on behal f of my ANC,
in which I've served for 18 years. Wth ne is Comm ssioner
Roger Moffatt, who represents the 375 side of that 4th Street

property, 4th and M Street property.
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In any case, |I'm here to reiterate that a
regul arly schedul ed neeting, properly noticed on March 19t h,
with a quorum present, our ANC voted 5-0-0 for a notion of
condi tional support in this case.

This is a case that we' ve had bef ore us goi ng back
alnost as long as |'ve been on the ANC. The question had
been why did you all ow the garden hoses? This was our first
trip to the rodeo.

We've learned a lot since we first had this case
infront of us, fromevery singl e devel opnent that's happened
south of the mall, on both sides of M Street, both sides of
South Capitol Street, but this was the first PUD that we
actually dealt with. In evaluating the Applicant's requested
nodi fication in significance, the ANC had given substanti al
consi deration to the Sout hwest small area pl an t hat we fought
to ensure would finally take place. W also are cogni zant
of the plan statenents regardi ng the commerci al office market
i n Sout hwest .

So even though we had expressed significant
concern regarding our desire not to even have a setdown on
this project, | think it had been -- we learned during
di scussions with the Applicant, and we | earned | ooki ng at the
materials that they had put forward, that it was better to
have a resi dential property there than to have the comrerci al

structure that would otherw se ari se.
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If you take a look at what is allowed on that
property, basically, what we would have -- first of all, |
want to nmake sure that the nei ghborhood understands that
regardl ess of what's decided of specifically what can be
built on those properties, those properties are going to be
bui |t upon.

Unfortunately, there has been a significant anount
of unfortunate and inaccurate information that's been put

forward in our conmmunity that if this is not dealt with, this

space will remain open for the foreseeable future. Not
| i kely; not going to happen. This was a decision to build
on these properties that was made nore than ten years ago.

| would hope that as other people testify, it will be nade
clear to themthat sonething is going to be built on these
properties.

| appreciate the fact that the community and M.
Goodi ng and t he Conm ssi oners have appreciated the fact that
during the interim period of time, the ANC had made sure,
with the assent of the Zoning Conm ssion, that these sites
were activated. These were to be activated sites only until
such tinme as building was going to be happening on those
sites, and we're close to that right now.

In this context, the ANC negotiated a conmunity
benefits agreenment with the Applicant that ainms to advance

devel opnment of a thriving town center along 4th Street and
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allows for the incorporation of residential uses into these
parcels, rather than sinply to have what we had previously
stated, K Street on M Street, which is exactly what would
have been built had we not had residential there as being
presently configured. The community center. As detailed in
the Applicant's subm ssion, the Applicant commtted to | ease
and build out 6,000 square feet of two-story space for a
nei ghbor hood- servi ng community center, at cost, for a period
of no less than 30 years.

The ANC believes that the creation of a Sout hwest
community center is indispensable to the wellbeing of our
Sout hwest community and is a critical conponent that led to
our support of this project. W asked for it. W recognize
that this is sonmething that's absolutely critical.

W have a nei ghborhood that's burgeoning, that's
bursting at the seans. The nunber of people that will be
novi ng i nto the nei ghborhood will be double what we had when
this project first came online. Double.

W had 12, 000 i n Sout hwest before; we're going to
have 24,000 within the next five years. To answer Ms.
Goodi ng's question, the churches can't accomobdat e. The
|ibrary can't accomodate. W tried to hold the library up
for athird story, so we woul d have nore open space. Still,
it wouldn't be our space; it would be the city's space. So

we deci ded that even though the individual condom niuns and
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sone of the | arger apartnent houses have | ovel y space inside,
and they've got fire pits and places upstairs, there is no
one place where the entire Sout hwest community can gat her.

When we broke t hrough that cl ot at Waterside Mall,
we j oi ned both the north side of Sout hwest and t he south side
of Sout hwest for the first tinme in 50 years. The first tine
that we've had opportunities, really, to mngle, outside of
the Safeway and the CVS, has been when fol ks have had an
opportunity to go to the Friday night markets and go to the
Saturday markets and go to the kinds of things that we
established to help growthe community and knit the community
t oget her.

W're a community that's redevel oping. W' re not
a conmunity that has had, for a long period of tine, an
opportunity to have a Grl Scout troop, for instance. W had
a Grl Scout troop. It stopped being a Grl Scout troop when
nobody coul d find space for themto neet, not a church, not
the police station, not the rec center. We need to have
t hose kinds of spaces that can provide our community, wit
| arge, with opportunities for space and activities. | grew
up in New York City. | used the 92nd Street Y. M parents
t hen noved to Long Island, and they had a community center,
several community centers in their community, that enabl ed
seni ors and young people and kids in high school to be able

to do afterschool learning, to be able to do what we used to
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call adult ed kinds of things, places to |earn how to play
bri dge, places to congregate.

That's what we don't have i n our community. There
are other comunities, Chevy Chase being one exanple,
Anacosti a bei ng anot her exanple, with the -- what's the nane
of the big --

(O f-mcrophone comment.)

MR LI TSKY: Yes, exactly, with THEARC. W didn't
get that. Wth all of the building that's happening south
of the expressway, we got nothing for the community. W had
bits and pieces, but we had nothing for the community. W
didn't wind up with a conmunity center, and that's why we
asked for this space, so we're very pleased that this space
is being -- that the Applicant has seen fit to provide the
space for us. W hope that will answer questions fromthe
communi ty about what we envision this space being used for.
We believe that the Southwest Conmunity Center's prograns,
conmbi ned with i nproved community-serving retail, a conmerci al
mx that caters to comunity services, wll further
contribute to the pedestrian activation of the Waterfront
Station and position Waterfront Station to becone a vibrant
center for our conmunity.

The Conm ssi oners shoul d note, in our report, that
the ANC al so attached a letter of support for the Sout hwest

Community Center by our Southwest Civic Association, which
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has served as our civil association for 50 years. They are
full stead in favor of ensuring that this process noves
f orwar d.

On the traffic planning activati on nmanagenent of
the PUD site, as detailed in the CBA, the Applicant agreed
to a substantially inproved traffic plan and active
managenent of the PUD site. The ANC believes that inproved
signage plan will address many of the problens that we have
encountered on that site, and that we envision wll be
exacerbated by these two buildings. One of the other people
that had sat as a nmenber of the negotiating committee was
Marjorie Lightman, who was a forner comm ssioner in our ANC,
and who represented the area where the 425 buil di ng woul d be.

She lives directly adjacent to that in the MII
Creek building, so she was very famliar with that. Having
her participation was really integral to ensuring that we
coul d devel op a proper transportation plan for this |arger
site, especially as the private roads related to both the
MIl Creek property and the Waterfront Towers property.

The prom se of active site nanagenent, which has,
frankly, been heretofore seriously |lacking by the Applicant,
as the lead partner in this managenent of the superbl ock,
will significantly enhance pedestrian safety and i ncorporate
appropriate vehicular traffic and i nprove the area overall.

One of the problens that we had for this, and one
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of the reasons why we were slightly snarky in the manner in
which we had delivered our report, was because over the
course of ten years, we had great problens wth this
Applicant. This Applicant cane before us. They told us they
were going to give us a wonderful town center. No sooner had
they built the two office spaces that house, now, several
district agencies, they flipped the property. Done.

They maintained the Elliott. They maintai ned
these two parcels. Yet, there was no further managenent of
t hose properties and the prom sed kinds of anenities that we
had been prom sed when we said that this was going to be
novi ng forward sonme years ago.

W really have asked them for active site
managenment. They pronm sed to have an active site managenent
process. W woul d expect that that's something that the
Zoning Conmi ssion will want to ensure is put in the final
zoning order. W appreciate thought given by the Applicant
to pedestrian plans on 4th Street, especially as people exit
the Metro station.

That is an area that has been a consistent
probl em That is an area that the partners of this
super bl ock have chosen not to address, | o, these nmany years.
It has taken this site, and Forest City on this site, to
address this finally. W've got many t housands of additi onal

pedestrians that are going to be using that Mtro plaza
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because of the wharf and because of the 21, 000-seat stadium
that's going to be opening in July, at the soccer stadium

The Waterfront station is only one of two subway
stations, Metro stations that will serve that soccer stadi um
We anticipate there's going to be a considerable nunber of
new pedestrians who are going to be using that Wterfront
stati on.

We hope that in the safety anal yses that are going
to be done by the Applicant and DDOT and Gorove/ Sl ade, that
they wll take that into consideration. The additi onal
pedestrian novenent across M Street is definitely something
that has to be | ooked at.

It may not pertain directly to this project, but
it certainly pertains to the overall public safety aspects
of how that 4th Street intersection is going to be nanaged.
On the retail strategy and inplenentation, the ANC believes
that the execution of a conpelling retail strategy is
absolutely essential to creation of a thriving town center.
M. Chairman, you stated earlier that you were worked at EPA
back in the heyday, well, if we can call it a heyday, when
Wat ersi de Mall was existing. "Il just call it existing.
We had nore than 25 |ocal nerchants over there. W had a
bank. W had two banks, at one point. W had a nunber of
restaurants.

W had a nunmber of fast foods. W had a
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full-service liquor store, at that tine, the best in the
entire city, at Harry's. It was before there were things as
Marvel ous Market. Harry's had it all under one roof. W had
a video store, not that they exist anynore.

We had a watch repair. W had a separate florist,
and we had a separate card store. W had a bookstore. W
had a Bible store. W had a Dock in the Box. W had a pizza
-- what's the pizza delivery place? W had one of those.
W had a Radi o Shack. W had a H gh's.

All of this served the Southwest community. W
were prom sed, when this street went through, we were going
to get community-serving retail com ng back. You know what

we got? We fought like hell to keep the Saf eway, fought with

the Applicant to keep the Safeway, which we did. It's a
| ar ge Safeway, and it functions very well. W kept the CVS,
which had a long-term lease, so CVS stuck around. W
repl aced an existing dry cleaner. We've got a Subway.

Nobody in the nei ghborhood uses it. People who work in the
of fi ce buildings do.

We have an I ndi an restaurant, and we have anot her
restaurant, and we have a hanburger joint. That's what we've
got . It was only recently, when we added real
comrunity-serving retail, if you'll call it retail, when they
| eased space to a dental office on 4th Street.

Aside from that, none of the kinds of services
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that you were able to have, M. Chairman, when you were
working there does this community have now. W' ve got
not hi ng. So what we are expecting of the Applicant is that
they're going to actually inplenment a very vigorous -- using
their consultants, using their ability as a bi g board conpany
-- to bring retail expertise to this one little area.

That's what we need themto do. That's sonething
that we absolutely demand i s going to be done, and wth real
retail, not putting a Verizon store there. That's not
retail. That's not community-serving retail. That's what
t he devel opers love to put in these things because it gives
themlong-termability to | ease the space. W want to nake
sure that the space i s | eased to busi nesses that are actually
going to serve the community. W shoul d expect nothing | ess.

They' re a bi g board conpany wi th maj or nati onw de
projects. W expect the Applicant will, by virtue of this
PUD, now legally, formally commit to inplenenting a strategy
and regularly neet with the ANC to discuss retail strategy
and the inplenentation plan.

Sout hwest can no | onger accept Forest City's ugly
stepchild way of approaching Southwest when it |avishes
attention on the yards. This is a conpany that built
Br ookl yn. They own the Nets, for <crying out |oud.
Certainly, you can bring sonme local retail to Sout hwest.

That's what we need to have happen. That's what
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we need you to nmake sure you tell themw || have happen. As
such, the ANCis very encouraged by OP's, | believe, support
of a plan that will require the Applicant, nore or less, to

use it or loseit. Mybe that's sonething that they offered;
|"mnot sure. It seens to ne that no | onger can we afford
to have enpty storefronts in the heart of our nei ghborhood.
We've had them for too |ong. It seens to ne that somehow
in this process, if a store is not being |eased, turn it
over. Turn it over.

As we did with the enpty space that was on those
two lots for a period of time, until such time as it's
| eased, it ought to be turned over to pop-up retail. Ve
ought to be able to work with the BID, now that we have a
Sout hwest BID that's actually pretty damm good, to be able
to work with them and other agencies in the governnment to
make sure that we're activating space to provide services to
t he resi dents of Sout hwest, not just wait to hold out for the
expensi ve rents that these things are probably going to cost.

W al so had Jenny's, which was our |ocal Chinese
restaurant. The only Chinese restaurant in Southwest. It's
been in Southwest for 50 years. Let ne tell you what
happened with Jenny's. Jenny's had to nove out of \Waterside
Mal | because it was bei ng knocked down, and they were given
space at the A d Channel Inn and prom sed that they woul d be

al | owed space at the new wharf. They were, but perhaps they
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weren't as smart as they should have been. They didn't cut
their deal ahead of tinme; they took it on word.

So when they were provided with the opportunity
to have that space, this nerchant that had provi ded services
to Southwest and is greatly beloved by many of us was no
| onger able to afford and outfit space on the waterfront.
They didn't cut their deal ahead of tine.

| want to make sure that if we have |Iocal
merchants, we can actually fit theminto the center of our
community. | do know that the Applicant was good enough to
neet with Jenny's to see if perhaps they would be able to
find space in the Elliott, but again, this is new building
space.

They' ve got to pay for it sonmehow, and nerchants
are being charged a significant anount of noney to enter into
t hese spaces. Part of the concern that we have is that
unli ke H Street and a nunber of places that have been built
out, you can kind of have -- let's have a restaurant on H
Street. You used to be able to do that. You can't do that
down here. You have to put in a lot of noney to be able to
do it. It's going to be incunbent upon the Applicant and
their retail consultant and OP, working with the community
to really hustle to ensure that we're getting the kinds of
retail in Southwest that we used to have because it ain't

t here now.
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What was promsed ten years ago has not
materialized. So now we're giving themtwo nore buil di ngs,
which they will be able to be renting. They're going to be
cash cows. Let's not kid ourselves. The Elliott is a real
cash cow because | don't think there's any affordabl e housing
in that. Let's nmake sure that what we get is what they've
prom sed.

The i nprovenents to the public realm Regarding
the public space plan, the ANC is pleased that even though
this case does not include the public space around the
Waterfront Metro station, that the Applicant agreed to work
with the other owners of Waterfront Station to enhance the
Waterfront Metro Plaza, by adding elenents that create a
sense of vibrancy to a thriving waterfront nei ghborhood. The
el ements could include public art, incorporate way finding
features, and certainly enhance the existing features of the
Waterfront Metro Plaza. You want to know why we wound up
with what we have now, which we affectionately call the
garden hoses? It's because we asked for -- you guys are
calling it Waterfront Station, have a water feature.

They said don't worry about it; we're going to do
that. We were charnmed. Deborah is very charmng. Mtchel
Shear is very charm ng. This was our first tinme at the
rodeo, so we bought intoit. That's why we have to nake sure

that when we get this approved, we are getting sonething
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approved that we understand is going to be built.

We don't do it on say-so, and we don't it on yes,
we're going todoit. W're going to see what's going to be
done and ensure that it's going to be done before this thing
I S approved. O herwi se, we'll get garden hoses. | don't
want any nore garden hoses.

It's inappropriate for the entrance to Sout hwest
and the city's waterfront nei ghborhood. Wen the city
energes at the waterfront, they energe at Waterfront Metro.
That's this Metro. That's where these guys are building
their projects. W'd like to make sure that we w nd up
havi ng an appropriate thing there, other than what we've got.
On the building massing, the ANC appreciates that the
residential building design really requires |Iower FAR and
| essens the density, noving the devel opnent nore inline with
t he open space concept in nmuch of the design in Southwest.

The ANC believes that the residential nassing is
much nore appealing than the massing that woul d have been
used for the commercial buildings, as | stated before.
Accordingly, the newest design wll have a significant
positive visual inpact onthe comunities of Tiber Island and
Carrol |l sburg, which are both the major communities on either
side of 4th Street, across M

The ANC al so believes that these benefits, when

coupl ed W th pl ans for enhanced ground-f | oor
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communi ty-serving retail and second-floor commercial space
on the east building, will do nmuch to create a thriving town
center, which we have | ong advocated. Thus, the ANC bel i eves
that the Applicant's plan has addressed the ANC s concerns
for activation, traffic control, and input requirenents
related to a change from an approved commerci al devel opnent
to one whose major content is residential. It's going to be
up to the Zoni ng Conm ssion, however, to nake sure that they
provide what it is that they've prom sed.

The ANC, however, as happy as we were with this
reconfiguration and this mmjor change, was not yet happy
enough to enbrace this entirely. So what we did at our March
16th nmeeting was to give only conditional approval to this
proj ect because there are still several things that are
out st andi ng.

Let ne go over these things now. W strongly urge
t he Comm ssion to withhold voting onthis PUDuntil such tine
as the itens that we're going to be talking about are
resolved inwiting. Oherwise, we'll be taking it on a w ng
and a prayer, and that's how we wound up with the garden
hoses.

On the comunity center, on selection and
operations, upon further review, the ANC 6D believes that the
ANC should have full authority, not shared wth the

Applicant, to sel ect the operator of the community center and

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A WD

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

139

expects the CBA to be anended accordingly. The ANC al so
believes that the Applicant reneged on a conmmtnent made
during negotiations when the Applicant clearly agreed that
the community center would be free for 30 years. Free is
free.

It was stated by a nunmber of the Conmm ssioners
this evening; free is free. The idea that we're being held
up for electric costs, that we may be hel d up for HVAC costs,
It's apittance. It's unfortunate. W certainly hope that's
goi ng to be aneli orated.

The Applicant's claim made during subsequent
negoti ati on sessions, that requirenent for paying utilities
i nposed on this cease, nay be wel |l appreciated in the context
of pronoting energy conservation which, by the way, they
ought to be conmended for.

Because as | understand it, you just won an energy
conservation award, and that Forest City corporate will be
awar ded a nmmj or energy award by Departnent of Energy -- no,
by the EPA, on April 20th, so congratul ations. W' re as
energy conscious as they are. Al so, because they're doing
it, it would be nice if they wound up going to LEED Col d.
Perhaps the admnistrator of EPA if he's still the
adm ni strator, wll enbrace them and feel happier, on the
20t h, when he presents that award. However, the backtracking

on the costs for the center is really a concern for us.
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It seens to ne if you're providing sonething to
the community, and it's provided as an anenity, it's free.
As a matter of fact, not only is it free, and that's what was
asserted us in the initial discussions, but when the
presentati on was nade -- and we've got the recording of it.

When the presentation was nmade by the Applicant
to the ANC, prior to the vote, at a public neeting of the
community, where the community was able to answer questi ons,
It was provided as sonething that was free, and it was never
provided with these additional anmendnents as part of it.
Nonet hel ess, we would like the final letter to reflect the
community center will be free because free is free. Wen you
provi de sonething, you provide it with no strings.

Publ i ¢ space i nprovenent el enents. In advance of
any zoning approval, the ANC wants to see precisely what
el ements the Applicant will beinstalling inthe public space
in the Metro Pl aza. Again, we need to have a sense of
arrival at our city's waterfront. You're energing fromthe
wat erfront, you ought to see nore than a little bit of pishy
garden hoses because that's what we've got.

Honestly, show up. Wen they're working, that's
what we' ve got. Wiat they delivered was what they delivered,
and it's because we didn't insist that they provide us with
t he drawi ngs of what was going to appear there.

W would like those things to be provided in
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advance. Enhanced traffic site plan for 4th and M Street.
Currently, the juncture of 4th and M as | think | had said
before, is really one of the nost difficult corners in
Sout hwest .

DDOT continues to struggle wth the crossing
patterns at that intersection, and that conplexity will be
further conplicated by the arrival of two nmajor buildings on
each of those corners. The left-turn lane. It seens to ne
we're getting different stories about who wanted what and
who's getting paid for what, but it's quite clear that both
DDOT and the Applicant want a left-turn |lane turn over from
-- headi ng south on 4th Street, heading east on M Wil e the
CGor ove/ Sl ade pl an ostensi bly speaks to a typical use of the
street as it usually does, they' ve only anal yzed what exists
NOW.

" mvery concerned about the fact that the safety
pl an has not happened yet. |'mvery concerned that a safety
plan mght then require, in order to have a left turn, a
reconfiguration of the existing streetscape on 4th Street,
and that in order to do so, if the Zoni ng Conm ssi on approves
sonet hing that doesn't allowit to be anmended, that we woul d
be putting the cart before the horse.

The ANC i s especi ally concerned t hat DDOT, w t hout
conducting its own study, stated in their own report inthis

project that DDOT i s dependi ng upon the Applicant to pay for
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this. As | think we have found in other places, there are
certain things that our city ought to be doing. It seens to
me the city, DDOT, absent an applicant, ought to be paying
to ensure that our streets are safe. W ought not to have
to wait for a devel oper to cone and provide, as a proffer to
the city, to pay for the cost of a safety plan of a mgjor
I ntersection in the nost heavily developing area in the
entire city. That's outrageous, so that's bad on DDOT.
Carry it through.

That's not the way we ought to be doi ng busi ness.
| f there was a safety probleminitially, if DDOT wanted this
thing to be done, they should have done it on their own dine
and made sure that we no |onger have people who are killed
and people who are hit at that intersection.

It ought to be done in advance of a decision on
this project. On the Metro bus stops, we appreciate the fact
that after long last, we're getting a re-introduction of the
Sout hwest Circul ator.

W hope that DDOT and the Applicant will be
wor ki ng together to ensure that G rculator will be stopping

at 4th and M during construction. W're going to have to

find space for it. As well, we're going to have to find
space for the 74 bus. As well, we want to nmake sure that 74
bus is going to be able to have a bus shelter. DDOT is in

charge of managi ng the contract for the advertising on those
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bus shelters. Seens to ne they ought to tell themthat they
can place a bus shelter back where a bus shelter was
elimnated, so that they could make a different turn across
the street.

Logi stics and operations. ANC 6D has a nunber of
| ogi stical and operational concerns that need to be addressed
nore conpletely on a constructi on nanagenent plan. W don't
have one now. This is not construction that's going to be
happeni ng over at the wharf, where nobody was |iving.

This is happening smack in the mddle of our
community, smack in the mddle. |It's the very heart of our
community. It's ontop of a Metro station. |It's across from
the Safeway. This is at the heart of our community. The
fact that we don't have, currently, a constructi on nanagenent
pl an concerns ne.

W ought to have one, at this point. |'m happy
that they have stated, the Applicant, that they will provide
awitten commtnent to devel op one, but it would be nice to
know that we've got one in advance, and that we have the
ability to enforce certain things that need to be in a plan
of that nature, especially given the place where it's going
to happen. On the RPP restrictions, we're glad that the
Applicant has agreed to those restrictions.

On the interior | oading deliveries, the ANC wants

the Applicant to provide |I|anguage ensuring that al
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del i veri es, I ncluding trash, FedEx, UPS, and retai
deliveries wll occur wthin the |oading dock bays in both
of their buildings. |'mnot sure that they' ve currently done
t hat .

On a detail plan for program of the open space,
the ANC would really like to have greater detail on how the
public realm and plaza areas wll be programmed and
mai nt ai ned upon the conpletion of the construction.

Finally, the ANC would Ilike to note, as
reconmmended i n the Sout hwest snal |l area plan, that 4th Street
parcels are currently progranmed by the Applicant at the
i nsi stence of this Zoning Comm ssion and at the insistence
of the ANC, and it's done along with the Southwest BID.
That's why we had the farnmers' market, initially. That's why
we had those gat hering spaces. That's why we had t he pop-up
events. That's why we've had the D.C. state fair. That's
why we're going to have -- | believe we're going to have --
we' re having an arts festival down there, as well. But these
were al ways tenporary uses.

Wre those spaces able to remain vacant
forevernore, we'd do a dance, but that's not going to happen.
Those spaces are going to be built upon. W recognize that.
Most everybody in the comrunity recogni zes that.

What we want to do is we want to nake sure that

the popularity of these spaces and the fact that bringing
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toget her people fromall over Southwest will be able to be
continued in other places in our community. As such, we are
encouraging the BID, we are encouragi ng our council menber,
we are encouraging the mayor and DVMPED and DPR to program
t hose spaces where we currently have open space.

Furt her, as has been poi nted out by the Applicant,
and as we've pointed out in our report and in our testinony
tonight, there is open space on that superblock on the north
end of that block. W've got two churches, one of which is
currently in the process -- long process -- of undergoing
redevel opnent. We've got the Westm nster Presbyterian site
and the Christ Methodi st churches, we have carve-out spaces
over there, which are actually bigger than just the
carve-outs that exist. W've got park space that's avail abl e
t here.

W're | ooking to the Zoni ng Comm ssion and to OP
and to DMPED, who's not here tonight, to ensure that space
will be preserved as open public space, so that we will be
able to maintain the kind of open public gathering space for
our comrunity on the north part of that l[ot that we know
we're going to | ose on the south part of that |ot.

Ve are confirm ng our commi t nent to
supporting/ enhanci ng t he Sout hwest duck pond and advocati ng
for significant inprovenents to Landsburg Park and the

Randal | Recreation Center which, six years ago, by the way,
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the ANC hel ped to save.

G herw se, it woul d have been taken under contr ol
by a charter school, and we would have no use of it,
what soever. | n conclusion, | have said nore than once that
we've had the opportunity to address this comm ssion about
my concern that with all of the effort that we put into PUD s
inthis comunity, and in the city, that really, there is no
-- nothing that any community can do if an applicant doesn't
cone across with their prom sed plans. Wat are you going
to do, take away their building?

It's already built. W have an opportunity now
to ensure that this Applicant that has shown us what they can
do over ten years, to make sure that they deliver this tine
for the Sout hwest community. That's what | urge you to do.

Pl ease make sure that the concerns that we yet
have out standi ng will be addressed, and pl ease nmake sure t hat
they are addressed in witing, so we know precisely what
we're going to be getting when this project is conpleted.
Thank you for the opportunity to testify.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Thank you. Conmi ssi oner Moffat.

MR, MOFFAT: Well mine will be slightly shorter,
as you see in front of you. First, |let nme apol ogi ze for sone
of these typos in here that I'Il try to catch and correct.
Good eveni ng, Chairman Hood and all the other Conm ssioners

of the Zoning Conm ssion of the District of Colunbia, and
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good evening to the fellow citizens of the D strict of
Col unbi a. M/ nane is Roger Mffat, and | serve as
comm ssi oner for Single-Mnber D strict 6D05 where the 375
M Street Southwest portion of this project is situated.

| am here tonight to speak on behalf of ny
constituents in SMD 6D05. As stated on the ANC report, 6D
voted 5-0-0 for conditional support of the Zoni ng Case 0238l
sothe mgjority of the proposal is acceptable. In fact, sone
parts are great.

W will have a community center to activate the
area and provide services and neeting places for the
community. W wll have |ower density than was previously
approved, along with a partial setback from the residence
across the street, thereby falling noreinline wth the open
desi gn of Sout hwest.

W will have |oading and unl oadi ng taking place
i nside the buildings, rather than using the private street,
which will have | ess noise and funes. Unfortunately, along
with the good are a lot of concerns. Let me say at the
outset that we believe mny of the conditions and
reservations coul d have been fixed prior to appearing before
you had we been -- had we not been on such a tight schedul e
of al nost weekly neetings, at the behest of the Applicant,
to enabl e accommodating this hearing date.

W did ask themto ask for a postponenent early,
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but they were not having it. | would like to speak to one
of the issues of the Applicant's answers to the OP, the
Applicant's response to the OP's comment asking Applicant to

provi de nore three-bedroomunits.

Applicant's response was that -- part of the
response was that this provision of larger units is also
consistent with the request fromthe ANC, ANC 6D. | believe
this Comm ssion already knows our stance on this issue, as

we have consistently asked for nore wunits and nore
t wo- bedroom | owincone, workforce and market, because all
famlies with two or nore children need a place to live in
D. C.

Qur request for nore units was greater for two
bedroons, as even included in an open letter to prospective
devel opers on Buzzard Point. So it may be partially
consistent with our request; however, it's not fully
consistent with our request because it does not serve all
mar kets, only the lowincone, inthis case. One of the major
concerns of the ANC 6D, when considering whether to enbrace
a nove fromall comrercial to primarily residential was, and
remai ns, activation, especially during the day.

W believe that the addition of a community center
that is fully used will add to the activation during both day
and evening. It will still be a difficult pull, but we

beli eve the need and the desire for the center will enhance
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activation through greater use.

We still have major concerns with the activation
by retail. As we |ook at what the comunity has requested,
conpared to what has been supplied, the results are abysmal
where the Applicant is concerned.

One contributing factor is the fact that Forest
City's design of their buildings, which they sold, along with
any culpability for providing retail in them was their
inability to all owfewer than 1, 200 square feet to be | eased.
We need community-serving retail, not |large box store type
retail. Most times, these small businesses don't need and
cannot afford 1,200 square feet of space. One exanple is a
| ocal post office that may have to nove was | ooking for 900
square feet, and they could not be acconmopbdat ed. Just
i magi ne the activation created by a U S. Post Ofice.

W have spoken to the Applicant and asked that
this be a maj or consideration in design, but | don't believe
there is a witten conmtnent to nake sure that nom and pop
demand si ze can be accomodat ed.

Anot her concern is making sure that the building
residents are not eligible for residential parking permt.
The Applicant has agreed to this, but we don't want to slip
t hrough t he cracks. Thank you for your tinme and for all ow ng
nme to present testinony this evening.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. | want to thank you both
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for your very thorough, very in-depth analysis of your hard

work that you all have done. |'mgoing to ask a couple of
qui ck questions. Conmm ssioner Litsky, | know sone years ago,
there was a lady, | think her nanme was Reverend Ham |ton
Actually, | had nentioned it in other hearings across the

city. \WWatever happened to that group that was | ooki ng at
all the PUDs and all the devel opnent down there, trying to
put everything together? Whatever happened? |s that group
still in existence?

MR, LITSKY: The CBCC?

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Yes, it was sonething --

MR, LITSKY: You remenber that?

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Ri ght .

MR LITSKY: Yes, it still exists. As a matter
of fact, Ken LaCruise is in the audi ence. He's the chairmn
of CBCC. He's sitting back here wi th Conm ssioner Fast, or
at | east he was. Yes, it still exists, and they still
parti ci pate.

One of the things that we hope to do is work with
CBCC and work with SWANA to be able to set up this comunity
center. Because when we had first set it up, we envisioned
t hat CBCC woul d be going out to the nei ghborhood to nake the
determ nati on about what was necessary. W would bring hone
t he bacon, and they'd cook it.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: The nanme of it was coordinating
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counci | or sonething.

MR LI TSKY: Yes, it's the Conmmunity Benefits
Coordi nating Council. To one extent or another, they've
participated on things at the wharf, and we're hoping to get
them nore involved when it cones, especially, to this
community center, not running it, but hel ping to choose an
entity that wll run it. So yes, they still exist. V5.

Ham lton is not in charge of that anynore.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: | noticed we had a letter. | just
t hought -- maybe | had a different vision. | thought that
with all of the developnent, we were putting all the
anenities together. Maybe | got it wong. | thought that's

how it initially started off to coordinate sone of that.

MR. LI TSKY: Vell, it was, and it didn't quite
turn out that way. One of the things we did do, however
just so you understand, is we wanted to nake sure that the
devel opers had an opportunity, should they want to, to nake
contributions. Since you can't nake a contribution to the
ANC -- that's not done -- we wanted to have kind of a
community chest set up. Two years ago, we established the
Sout hwest Community Foundati on that woul d enabl e devel opers
to be able to provide cash contributions that could then be
turned over, having been reviewed by the comrunity group, to
| ocal conmunity entities. W have a nunber of entities that

are functioning in that realm
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CHAI RMAN HOOD: | had nentioned to a | ot of ot her

communities to ook at that as the nodel because | thought
that was working, but it works sone.

MR LITSKY: It's a nodel. It works sonme. Wen
It works, it can work, but it's got to work.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD: This was early in sonme of that
devel opnent down there, before we even got started wth
things. | was just wondering.

MR LI TSKY: Yes, they were to take care of
wor kf orce housing and do other -- and they were to do the
ki nds of things that we're speaki ng about now.

CHAI RVAN  HOQOD: | think that both of the
submi ssions by the conm ssioners are very detail ed. [''m
going to ask that the Applicant respond. One of the things
that | have in ny notes is that | want to nmake sure that sone
of the things that he's nentioned, it needs to be
menorialized inwiting. Because what happens is if we don't
get it inwiting, it doesn't happen. |'mjust putting that
out there because that's one of the things |I'm going to
i nsi st upon and ask for as we continue to nove along. W

don't have to respond tonight to specific events.

You all need to work -- what | will also ask is
t hat you all col | abor at e, continue to have those
conversations. | guess you all wanted to conme down here and
see us. Sonme of the things that | heard from Conm ssi oner
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Mffat is everything was under the gun, but we're going to
obviously give you all sone nore tine to try to cl ose sone
of the gaps and put sone of that in witing, so there's sone
assurances to the comunity. |'d like to see that. Let ne

open it up. Comm ssioner Turnbull.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: No, | have, really, no
questions. | want to thank both comm ssioners fromthe ANC
6. This is great. It was very thorough, and | think we
appreci ate your comments. | think we addressed sone of those

comments in what we were tal king about earlier, but | think
the Applicant -- as you said, M. Chair, | think the
Applicant's got to go back and go through it, read it, mark
it, note it, and comrent back on all the comments that have
been made tonight. | really don't have anything. | think
it was very well done.

CHAI RMAN HOCD: Let nme just say any subm ssion,
don't nake it a dissertation. | don't want to see sound
bites. Let's get to the point. Let's nmke sure it's
menori alized correctly, whatever you all cone up with. Let's
not have us have to |ook for -- we have a lot to read and
| ook for, and we mss things, so let's get right to the
point. Any other comments up here? Vice chair.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: No, M. Chairnman. | see no
reason why nmany of those points would be incorporated in the

draft conditions, the typical draft conditions that we have
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I n zoning orders prior to the i ssuance of either the buil ding
permt or the C of O and whatever's appropriate timng for
sone of these things. | would expect that woul d be happeni ng
in this case, as well.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Let ne acknow edge M. Lawson has
been here. | forgot earlier that | was supposed to do that.
M. Lawson has been here for hours. Let the record reflect
that. Any other comments? Let's go to cross-exam nation.
Does the Applicant have any cross?

M5. SH KER: W don't have any cross-examnm nation
of the ANC.

CHAI RMAN HOQOD: Ckay, Water Towers, do you have
any cross? (kay. | made an announcenent earlier; we're
going to have to stick with it. W probably could have went
anot her hour, but | never know. W' re going to convene back
again May 10th. Let me get that right. | don't want to get
that wong -- May 10th, at 6:30, and we will begin wth
persons in support.

M5. SCHELLIN: Yes, we didn't have any si gned up,
but vyes.

CHAI RVAN  HOQOD: W don't have any persons in
support, then we'll go to the party in opposition, and then
we'll go to persons in opposition. Then we'll go to persons
and parties undeclared, and then we will have rebuttal and

closing. There will be sone tinme between May 10th. | know
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you all have been neeting every week. |'mnot going to ask
you to continue to neet, but | know there's sone further
di scussions that you all continue to have, and sone di al og.
Anything el se, Ms. Schellin? Conmm ssioners, anything el se?
Anybody? We're all on the sane page, May 10th at 6:30. Wth
that, we will reconvene on May 10t h. Thank you. Good ni ght.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled nmatter went of f the

record at 10:03 p.m)
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